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CORPORATE PROFILE 

British Waterways’ vision is of a sustainable and integrated network
of waterways throughout Britain, to provide maximum benefit and
enjoyment to society both now and long into the future.

British Waterways (BW) is a public
corporation that manages and cares for
more than 2000 miles of canals and
rivers in England, Scotland and Wales.

In our work we promote the balanced
achievement of:

Job creation through increased
economic activity and wealth.
Effective conservation and
enhancement of the nation’s
biodiversity, landscapes and built
environment.
Widespread enjoyment and use 
of a network that is accessible for
recreation, tourism and amenity to
the widest possible cross section 
of society.

We do this through:
Understanding and responding to
our stakeholders’ and customers’
needs.
Working in mutually beneficial
partnerships with the public, private
and voluntary sectors.
Blending best commercial practice
with public sector values.
Providing advice and expertise to
other bodies.
Employing people who are highly
motivated to achieve these
outcomes.
Using management systems that
facilitate taking holistic decisions.
Seeking financial sustainability and
best value for money.

We are involved in the following
business activities:

Providing navigation on more than
2000 miles of canals and rivers.
Businesses based on our network:
property development,
telecommunications services, water
transfer & supply and leisure
services.
Waterway and waterspace
management and maintenance.
Leisure, tourism and recreation
management.
Regeneration, restoration and
renewal.
Freight transport facilities.
Domestic and international
consultancy and operations.

We are:
Responsible to:
– the Department for Environment,

Food and Rural Affairs in England
and Wales, and

– the Department for Enterprise,
Transport and Lifelong Learning
in Scotland.

Working in close liaison with:
– the Department for Transport,

Planning and Environment in
Wales.

“British Waterways is a
public corporation that
manages and cares for
more than 2000 miles 
of canals and rivers 
in England, Scotland 
and Wales”
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Summary of results 

31/03/02 31/03/01
Financial highlights £m £m
Trading income 68.0 62.3
Regeneration & Restoration 43.0 66.6
Government grant 64.6 62.1
Total revenue 175.6 191.0
Profit on sale of investment properties 2.1 5.1
Profit on sale of other property rights 45.9 –
Safety-related maintenance backlog 39.9 56.9
Statutory maintenance arrears 181.0 174.3

Long-term capital reserves 348.7 294.5
Debt to government 16.3 16.7
Total 365.0 311.2
Average number of employees 2063 1929

97
/9

8

£
 M

IL
LI

O
N

S

98
/9

9

99
/0

0

00
/0

1

01
/0

2

40

0

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

20

REVENUE

GOVERNMENT GRANT

TRADING INCOME

REGENERATION & RESTORATION



4 BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS

Dr George Greener, Chairman, is also Chairman of
The Big Food Group plc, Director of Reckitt Benckiser
plc, Director of JP Morgan Fleming American
Investment Trust plc, and holder of various other
directorships. He is the former Chairman of Allied
Dunbar Assurance plc, Eagle Star Holdings plc,
Threadneedle Asset Management plc and Swallow
Group. He is also a former Director of BAT Industries
plc and former Group Chief Executive Officer of
Hillsdown Holdings plc. (Age 56)

Sir Peter Soulsby, Vice Chairman, is the former leader of
Leicester City Council and remains a councillor in the City.
He was knighted in 1999 for services to the City of
Leicester and local government. Until April 1998, Sir Peter
was chair of Leicester’s City Challenge project. He is shortly
finishing his service with the government’s Beacon Council
Advisory Panel, and is a former member of the Audit
Commission. He also Chairs the Remuneration Committee.
As a keen user of the inland waterways system, Sir Peter
has cruised the network extensively on his own narrowboat.
(Age 53)

BOARD MEMBERS

Helen Gordon has been with Railtrack since 1997
and is currently their Property Director. She is an
expert in enhancing ‘Brownfield’ sites and development
of under-utilised resources. She was Managing
Director of John Laing Property Ventures Ltd and has
also advised on many major regeneration projects.
(Age 43)

Dr Campbell Christie CBE is the former General
Secretary of the Scottish TUC, a Board Member of
Scottish Enterprise, a Director of South West Trains
Ltd and of Mining (Scotland). He is the UK
representative on the EU Economic and Social
Committee. He is the Chair of the BW Scotland Group
and represents Scottish interests on the Board. 
(Age 64)

George Fleming is Professor of Civil Engineering at the
University of Strathclyde, where he is also Director of the
Water and Environmental Management Unit, Centre of
Environmental Management Research and Managing
Director of EnviroCentre (an environmental consultancy
based at the University). He is a past President of the
Institution of Civil Engineers, and still chairs their Waste
Management Board. He is also a member of the Scottish
Exports Forum for the Scottish Executive. (Age 57)

Adeeba Malik is Deputy Chief Executive of QED UK
(Quest for Economic Development), a national
economic development charity. She is involved in local,
regional and national Committees and Boards covering
enterprise, health, learning and education and
community development. She is a Board Member of
Yorkshire Forward, a Non-executive Director of NCAA
(National Clinical Assessment Authority, Department of
Health) and a Member of the National Ethnic Business
Advisory Forum, DTI. (Age 35)

Derek Langslow is a member of the Agriculture and
Environmental Biotechnology Commission, Chairman of
the Rail Passenger Committee for Eastern England, a
trustee of the Heritage Lottery Fund, a non-executive
director of Harwich Haven Authority and is an external
consultant to DEFRA on Quinquennial Review. He is the
former Chief Executive of English Nature. He set up the
organisation following its demerger from the Nature
Conservancy Council. (Age 57)

Ian Darling is a chartered surveyor and Director of
Chesterton Property Consultants, sitting on the
company’s Scottish Board of Directors. He serves on
the Council and Scottish Committee of the RSPB and
has recently served as Master of the Edinburgh
Merchant Company. He is a past Chairman of the
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors in Scotland. He
is a regular user of Scotland’s canals and represents
Scottish interests on the Board. (Age 57)

Janet Lewis-Jones speaks Welsh and represents
Welsh interests on the Board. She is a member of
Sianel Pedwar Cymru (the Welsh Fourth Channel –
S4C), a Commissioner for the Postal Services
Commission, Vice President of the British Board of
Film Classification, and a trustee of the Police
Foundation, Baring Foundation, and Carnegie UK Trust.
(Age 52)

Terry Tricker is Chairman of the Burton Hospitals
NHS Trust. He is a former Director of Operations and
Board Member of Severn Trent Water Ltd, and Non-
Executive Director of the Employment Needs Training
Agency. He is a mentor with the ‘Jigsaw’ organisation,
part of the National Mentoring network, and works with
disadvantaged children in the UK and Romania. He is
a Chartered Chemist and has worked hard to improve
our aqueous environment. (Age 58)

Susan Achmatowicz is a leisure business entrepreneur,
who has developed her own award-winning cycle tourism
business. She has a background in the City of London.
She also acts as adviser, consultant and lecturer on
leisure, cycling and sustainable tourism issues. Her work
in the areas of rail-cycle integration, e-commerce and
sustainable tourism has been hailed as UK best practice.
Formerly a Vice President of the Bankers Trust Company,
she holds an MBA in Marketing and Finance from the
University of Alberta. (Age 47)

Director of British Waterways Pension Trustees Ltd Member of the Audit Committee Member of the Remuneration Committee

Member of the British Waterways Scotland Group Member of the Nomination Committee
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr David Fletcher CBE, BSc, DEng, CEng, FIEE, 
Chief Executive. Prior to joining British Waterways,
Dave spent his career at GEC plc, where he was
Deputy Chairman of GEC Marconi. He is Chairman of
the Association of Inland Navigation Authorities and
has a lifelong interest in the waterways having owned
a narrowboat for 20 years. (Age 59)

Robin Evans FRICS, Commercial Director, joined
British Waterways in 1999. Prior to that Robin spent
four years as Palaces’ Director for Historic Royal
Palaces and was Chief Executive of The Landmark
Trust for eight years. (Age 48)

Bill Schlegel CEng, MICE, 
Technical and Environment Director, has been an
Executive Director for four years, having joined British
Waterways in 1986. He previously worked in civil and
structural engineering consultancy. (Age 48)

Simon Salem BA, MBA, Communications Director,
has almost 20 years experience of marketing, PR,
corporate affairs and fundraising. Before joining British
Waterways, he worked for London Transport. He has
worked extensively in the leisure and tourism industry.
(Age 44)

Vincent Moran, BA, FCIPD, Personnel Director,
joined British Waterways in 1997 following personnel
and general management careers in the public and
private sectors. (Age 46)

Mark Smith FCCA, Financial Director. A fellow of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, Mark
has spent much of his professional career in retailing,
and held senior finance and business development
positions in Marks and Spencer plc before joining
British Waterways. (Age 43)

Stewart Sim CEng, MICE, MCIWEM, 
Operations Director. A civil engineer by profession
Stewart has worked for British Waterways for 28 years
in most parts of the country and has been involved in
most parts of the business. (Age 56)

Nigel Johnson BSc (Econ), Solicitor, Legal Director.
From 1987 to 1997 Nigel was Chief Solicitor to
Cheltenham & Gloucester plc. He was then appointed
Official Solicitor to the Church Commissioners before
joining British Waterways in April 2001. (Age 47)

P
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

‘A waterways revolution’ is how
the media have recently
described our plans to invest in
and reopen waterways this year;
we couldn’t have put it better
ourselves.
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George Greener



8 BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS

YEAR OF INVESTMENT AND REOPENINGS

‘A waterways revolution’ is how the
media have recently described our
plans to invest in and reopen waterways
this year; we couldn’t have put it better
ourselves. The fact that waterways are
an important public asset is now widely
recognised by national, regional and
local governments, the business
community and the general public.

Our role, as set out in our Framework
Document and in Waterways for
Tomorrow is to ensure that we unlock
the economic, environmental and
social benefits of the waterways
through sustainable development. We
are required to discharge our statutory
duties in this wider context, to
increase involvement and enjoyment
of the waterways and raise their
profile. Policy statements for
waterways are also being prepared by
the Scottish Parliament and the
National Assembly for Wales. 

The year has been notable for the
unprecedented number of regenerated
and restored waterways being
reopened and for making significant
progress in finalising public-private
partnerships in property and water.  

REACTING WITH RESILIENCE TO
UNFORESEEABLE EVENTS
We live and work in a world where
we are not always fully in control of
events. The terrorist attacks on the
United States of America, the Foot
and Mouth disease epidemic and the
ensuing economic and social fallout
affected the waterways and the
communities and businesses around
them. This has especially hit hard-
pressed tourism and leisure
businesses. Wider events, including
the slower than expected roll out of
3G technology have also affected our
partners in telecommunications.

We sought to manage the effects of
Foot and Mouth disease sensitively
and responsibly. We put in place a
swift recovery plan to help minimise
the impact on waterway-related
businesses, including special
arrangements on licence fee
payments. We were amongst the first
recreation and tourism businesses to
reopen, once we had put in place
expert evaluation to help us assess
the safety implications of doing so. We
will continue to assist the recovery of
waterway related businesses, in

particular through our partnership with
the British Marine Federation.

We have demonstrated that we have
the capability to deal with
unforeseeable circumstances. Careful
management and investment have
meant that the waterways can be
sustained despite all that has
happened. This means that our
important targets to eliminate our
backlog of maintenance work and
regenerate, restore and renew the
waterways are still on track.

ACHIEVEMENT AND 
CONTINUED INVESTMENT
By anyone’s reckoning this has been a
notable year of achievement.

We have reopened the Forth & Clyde
Canal, the Union Canal, The Falkirk
Wheel, the Huddersfield Narrow Canal
and Anderton Boat Lift. This first
phase of projects alone will create an
additional 13,000 jobs and inject
£80 million of income into local
economies. The long campaign to
ensure that the Birmingham Northern
Relief Road did not block the
restoration of the Lichfield and

1 Apsley Basin. A public-private partnership for

property development.

2 Lord Whitty, Waterways Minister, delivering his

keynote speech at the BURA Waterfront

regeneration conference in February.

3 Chairman, George Greener, in London Docklands.
1 2
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Hatherton Canals was also successful. 

We have invested £17 million in
reducing our safety-related backlog of
maintenance and £21.8 million on
improving waterways standards and
customer facilities. 

We will shortly establish two new
major public-private partnerships for
property development and water
transfer and supply. These
partnerships and our other commercial
ventures provide an important part of
the resources we need to invest in a
sustainable future. This year our
commercially earned income has
contributed £68 million to our turnover

– up 9% on last year’s record figure,
and up 45% over the last five years.

These types of partnership are very
much to the public benefit and
especially to the communities that
surround the waterways. The projects
that arise from these partnerships will
enhance the experiences our customers
and users get from the waterways and
improve the services they receive. They
are expected to stimulate the creation
of jobs and lever in over £150 million of
private sector investment. Also, by these
means, outstanding internationally
important environment and heritage
assets will be secured and made more
widely accessible.

“The year has been notable
for the unprecedented
number of regenerated
and restored waterways
being reopened and for
making significant
progress in finalising
public-private partnerships
in property and water”

3
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The key role that waterways play in
improving the quality of life was 
re-emphasised at the Waterfront
Regeneration Conference in February
2002. BW sponsored this British
Urban Regeneration Association
conference, held at the Royal
Armouries in Leeds. In his keynote
speech the Waterways Minister, in
Westminster, Lord Whitty said
“Waterways have the unique ability to
act as a catalyst for regeneration of an
area... they act as the focus for
imaginative development and assist
both urban and rural regeneration.”

Regeneration is not just about big
urban schemes. In May 2001 Welsh
Assembly Environment Minister, Sue
Essex, opened the new centre at rural
Goytre Wharf on the Monmouthshire
& Brecon Canal. Here imaginative
work has created new businesses,
jobs, an interpretation and education
resource, a visitor attraction with
environmental enhancements and a
secure future for a unique and special
industrial heritage.

OUR PARTNERS
We are fortunate to have so many
people and organisations that share
our vision. I would like to thank them
for their help and support.

The Waterways Minister in
Westminster, Lord Whitty, has
consistently supported us, and his new
appointments to the Board have
widened and strengthened it. The
government’s continued commitment
to our programme, and especially the

elimination of our backlog of safety-
related maintenance and statutory
arrears, is a vital part of our plans. 

The Scottish Executive is developing
its own policy statement for the
waterways in Scotland. I am
encouraged by the commitment of Iain
Gray, the Minister of Enterprise,
Transport and Lifelong Learning and
his deputy, Lewis Macdonald, whom I
met in Scotland at the opening of The
Falkirk Wheel.

In Wales, Welsh Assembly
Environment Minister, Sue Essex, has
given our activities a boost by
committing the Assembly to publish
and implement a Regeneration Plan
for the waterways in Wales. This is
being developed in partnership with
the key Welsh bodies and is eagerly
awaited.

Government decided that the
navigation responsibilities of BW and
the Environment Agency are to remain
unchanged. We remain committed to
using our unique blend of skills
wherever practical to work in
partnership with the Environment
Agency to ensure the objectives of
Waterways for Tomorrow are
achieved. A joint conference held in
April reviewed and advanced our
mutual Collaboration Agreement.

We continue to play a leading role
working in partnerships via the
Association of Inland Navigation
Authorities (AINA). Excellent progress
is being made in sharing best practice

1 George Greener at the launch of ‘Unlocked & Unlimited’.

2 Sue Essex, Environment Minister, Welsh Assembly (centre) 

with BW staff.

3 Our social inclusion document, Waterways for People, was

published featuring these children who created artwork for

landscaping at Osterley Lock, London.
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and establishing common national
standards. We welcomed AINA’s
document A vision for the strategic
enhancement of Britain’s inland
navigation network that was published
this year.

We continue to receive good advice
from the Inland Waterways Amenity
Advisory Council (IWAAC). The
publication of its review of waterway
restoration and development priorities,
A Second Waterway Age, is helping
us in developing our plans for the
long-term future of the waterways.

In March 2002 we launched ‘Unlocked
& Unlimited’, our campaign to build
partnerships to restore, regenerate and
build waterways. The launch was
attended by nearly 500 people. They
came from all types of organisation:
from small local trusts, charities, local
authorities, Regional Development
Agencies, statutory bodies and large
private companies. They came from all
parts of Britain to demonstrate their
support for the next phase of
regeneration, restoration and renewal.
This level of support is a testament to
the power of our waterways to
transform lives and benefit
communities.

Our aims to use the waterways to help
promote social inclusion were set out in
our document Waterways for People,
published in May 2002. It includes
many examples of what we have
already done and encourages others to
work in partnership with us to develop
projects that will lead to real

“We are fortunate to have
so many people and
organisations that share
our vision. I would like to
thank them for their help
and support”

improvements in the quality of life. Our
efforts in this direction were
strengthened when we cemented our
20-year relationship with Groundwork
UK in a Memorandum of Understanding
followed by a major conference. 

Our long-term relationships with
organisations like the Heritage Lottery
Fund, the Millennium Commission and
European Structural Funds have
helped us to achieve our goals in
making the waterways widely available
and accessible to all. Without their
help many of our restorations would
not have been possible – I commend
their vision and dedication.

OUR PEOPLE
The people who work for BW are an
impressive team. They have accepted
challenging targets which they
continue to meet despite the
difficulties posed by outside events.
Our recent staff survey proves that
they are dedicated, skilled and loyal
and show great team spirit (see page
24). They achieve, under real
conditions, the balances that we say
are necessary to fulfil our role. The
Board thanks them for their work and
would also like to acknowledge the
continued support and partnership of
the trade unions.

Dave Fletcher, Chief Executive, has led
our executive team inspirationally for
the last six years. Dave will retire in
December and we have now embarked
upon the task of finding a successor
to build on his legacy. He is an
inspirational, energetic and visionary

1 2 3
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leader. His contribution to the
waterways is immense, and its true
value will only properly be realised
when the history books are written in
years to come. All of us who love the
waterways will sorely miss him. Dave
invented the ‘new’ British Waterways
and has built a strong team that faces
the future with confidence. This 
year our executive team has been
strengthened by two internal promotions.

Simon Salem became our
Communications Director in December
2001. This recognises the importance
we attach to understanding our
stakeholders and spreading the
message of the benefits of waterways. 

Vince Moran’s appointment as
Personnel Director in May 2001
emphasises the importance we place
on our people. The influence of Vince
and his team on the recruitment,
development and retention of capable
people underpins the progress BW
plans to make in the future.

Carolan Dobson and Paul King both
stepped down as members of the
Board in September 2001. On behalf
of the Board and all of the staff in BW,
I thank them for three years of
valuable contributions to our task.

I am fortunate to have Sir Peter
Soulsby as Vice Chairman. I was
delighted when he agreed to be re-
appointed in this role. His experience
and wise counsel are an asset to all of
us on the Board.

I am pleased to be able to extend a
warm welcome to four new Board
members: Susan Achmatowicz,
George Fleming, Adeeba Malik and
Terry Tricker.

I am also pleased to welcome back
Janet Lewis-Jones who has been 
re-appointed after open competition.
Janet has kindly agreed to take on
the responsibility within the Board for
representing the interests of Wales.

The fact that the Board has such a
wealth of relevant experience and
interests to draw upon will be greatly
to our advantage. I am pleased to say
that it is also now more representative
of the inclusive society we all wish 
to see.

THE FUTURE
I said in my first Chairman’s statement
(June 2000) that I believed that BW
had ‘unique potential’ arising from our
ability to balance the commercial and
guardian moral imperatives. I still

believe it. That is why I am delighted to
have been re-appointed as Chairman
for a second three-year term with
effect from July this year. We are now
turning aspirations into reality. This
Annual Report & Accounts and our
recently published Our Plan for the
Future 2002-2006 show just how
ambitious we are to make our
aspirations come true. 

I believe that with the goodwill and
support of our many and varied
partners, the team in BW will continue
to deliver excellent returns for the
public benefit. That is something to
strive for and to be proud of.

31 2

George Greener
Chairman
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1 Cyclist on the Regent’s Canal in London.

2 Sue Beet, Resident Lock Keeper at

Sopwith Lock on the Chesterfield Canal.

3 Angling is a popular pastime on the

inland waterways.

4 A walker at Tring Reservoir, one of the

89 reservoirs we look after.

4
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Six years ago the position of the
waterways was not sustainable.
BW had assets that were unsafe
and there was little prospect of
them ever being made safe. 
Now all that has changed.
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Dave Fletcher
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PLANNED CHANGE AND INVESTMENT
Six years ago the position of the waterways was not
sustainable. BW had assets that were unsafe and there was
little prospect of them ever being made safe. Now all that
has changed.

The waterways were under-funded and overly dependent on
government grant. Our customer service standards were
inadequate. There was insufficient money to make proper
provision for protecting the environment and heritage in our care.

We now have a plan that will see our backlog of safety-
related maintenance eliminated by the end of 2004 and
our statutory arrears of maintenance by 2012. We have 
the means to invest in the waterways through a portfolio 
of sources. 

Our partnership approach, working with the public, private
and voluntary sectors, gives us the ability to regenerate,
restore and renew the waterways and the communities
surrounding them at a rate never seen before.

Our service quality has improved greatly and will continue to
do so through a planned programme of investment. In short,
our waterways are starting to fulfil their potential to generate
economic, environmental and social benefits for all.

This is because we have challenged the accepted ways of
doing things. We now work differently and do not accept
the status quo. Over the last few years we have invested
in our staff and the systems they use. We have invested in
quality relationships with our partners that have brought
mutual benefits. And we have invested in commercial
ventures that generate long-term revenue from a
managed portfolio.

ELIMINATING MAINTENANCE ARREARS
We are on schedule to meet our targets for reducing and
eventually eliminating our arrears of maintenance. The cost
of our backlog of safety-related maintenance has fallen
below £40 million for the first time in decades.
Concentrating on eliminating the safety-related work has
led to a planned increase in our non-safety or statutory
arrears of maintenance. This is estimated at £181 million.
The statutory arrears figure will now steadily reduce so that
it is eliminated by 2012 as long as government support and
commercial success continue as we have planned. We are
making a strong case to government for the Spending
Review 2002 to contain sufficient grant to ensure not only
that our targets are met but are achieved by an earlier date
to match our increasing technical capability and the rising
expectations of our customers.

1 2 3
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1 A lock refurbishment on the Manchester

section of the Rochdale Canal.

2 New BW housing development in Enfield.

3 Standedge Tunnel, part of the Standedge

Experience visitor attraction which

opened in May 2001.

“In short, our waterways are
starting to fulfil their
potential to generate
economic, environmental
and social benefits for all”
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STATUTORY ARREARS (LATEST) STATUTORY ARREARS (ORIGINAL PLAN)
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COMMERCIAL DRIVE
Our commercial activities are the means by which we
generate much of the resources we need to invest in 
the waterways.

This year our trading income is up £5.7 million (9%) to
£68 million. Much of this increase has been generated by
an impressive £2.5 million (14%) increase in leisure trading
to £19.9 million. This shows the virtuous circle of
regeneration and restoration in practice. These increases
are in large part due to increased income from moorings,
marinas, craft licences and our new Standedge Experience
visitor attraction. This income has only accrued because of
our programme of regeneration, restoration and acquisition.

We have completed a number of important commercial
agreements including the sale of property rights. This
activity has generated exceptional income this year of
almost £46 million. We will use the money to reinvest

BRITISH WATERWAYS BACKLOG OF SAFETY-RELATED MAINTENANCE & STATUTORY ARREARS
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primarily into the elimination of our maintenance arrears, but
also for improved customer facilities, improved channel
dimensions, and to stimulate further commercial investment.

We will shortly set up a new innovative property public-
private partnership. We have selected WARP4 – a
partnership that includes AMEC Developments and Igloo
Regeneration Fund (managed by Morley Fund
Management) – as our partner. This partnership will greatly
enhance our ability to bring forward profitable schemes to
generate good long-term revenue. The partnership fully
shares our commitment to develop waterway sites for
environmental and social benefits. We have selected ten
sites to become the first projects for the company and
work is already underway. We expect the partnership to
generate in excess of £100 million over 15 years.

Several other major public-private partnerships for the
development of land and buildings have also been
established, for example with Peel Holdings in Gloucester,
St Modwen in Stoke and Miller Developments in both
London and Scotland.

We are also in the process of selecting partners for our
public-private partnership to transfer and supply water. This

is an imaginative partnership that will deliver new income to
BW, generate competition in the water industry and ensure
an improved and more secure supply of water for the
network.

Our telecommunications partnership is continuing to
generate its contracted revenues despite the slowdown in
the telecommunications market. We have a strategic
network and a good portfolio of potential mast sites that
will be attractive to service providers when market
conditions encourage them to start investing again.

We were pleased to see the publication of the government’s
Freight Study Group report. We have appointed a senior
manager to take charge of freight development and to take
advantage of the government’s new favourable regime for
awarding grants for freight.

We have sold our expertise in the form of consultancy both
domestically and internationally for many years. This year
we created a joint venture, Prelude Resources, to directly
provide waterway services for Malaysia’s waterway
network. Our partner is Malaysian engineering company,
Anggun Perkasa.
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IMPROVED CUSTOMER SERVICE AND FACILITIES
We will achieve the targets for waterway standards we set
out in Our Plan for the Future 2002-2006. The ‘Navigation’
section that follows contains more details. Our progress on
achieving the appropriate channel dimensions was
hindered in the last year because of access difficulties
caused by Foot and Mouth disease. We have committed to
increased expenditure in this area so that we meet our
published targets by 2005-2006.

During the year we completed major surveys of boaters,
anglers and towpath visitors. The themes from all the
surveys were the same. People thought that the upkeep of
the waterways had improved and there remain high levels of
satisfaction with our staff. This shows that the investment
we are making in the waterways is being appreciated and is
a testament to the quality of our teams. However, the
surveys also demonstrate that we are still not meeting our
users’ expectations for service, facilities and information
provision on the ground. This data is a great help to guide
the priorities of our five-year programme of improvements.

Our website www.britishwaterways.co.uk was completely
redesigned and relaunched during the year in the light of

“This year we created a joint
venture, Prelude Resources,
to directly provide waterway
services for Malaysia’s
waterway network”

Sailing boats from all over Europe participating in the Great Glen.

Raid 2001, pictured here on Loch Lochy on the Caledonian Canal.
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user feedback. The new site is easier to use and has a
host of advanced new features. We also launched a text-
only version of the site for the visually impaired. Use of the
site has increased nearly ten-fold on 1999, 70% of visitors
rate the site as good or excellent and more than 10,000
people have registered to receive regular information.

We achieved efficiency savings and service enhancements
by combining our craft licensing and customer service teams.
The new Customer Service Centre (01923 20 11 20) has
extended opening hours on weekday evenings and Saturday
mornings. It provides a one-stop shop for all enquiries about
the use of the inland waterways.

Our Plan for the Future 2002-2006 was published in 
June 2002. The document included, for the first time, 
our Customer Charter commitments previously published 
in Caring for Britain’s Waterways. We also publish our
complaints procedure on our website.

The Waterways Ombudsman independently adjudicates on
complaints where our own procedure has been exhausted.
During the year he received 25 enquiries and accepted five
of these for further investigation. He published seven cases
in all this year, some of which were carried over from last
year. The Ombudsman found no maladministration in two
cases, minor maladministration in one, and maladministration
in the remaining four cases. We accept all of the
Ombudsman's recommendations and either have 
already implemented them or will shortly be doing so.

REGENERATION AND RESTORATION
This year saw the reopening of the majority of our first phase
of regeneration and restorations. We are immensely
appreciative of all our public, private and voluntary sector
partners who help us deliver these projects. In 2001-2002
we invested £43 million of public, private and voluntary
money into such projects.
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Our partnership income shows a drop this year as the effect
of the big regeneration and restoration project completions
works are through. This is one reason why pursuing a
portfolio approach to our total funding is essential. We are
working hard with our partners to put in place the funding
for the next phase of projects. The funding world has
become much more competitive and there are fewer large
grants being given. 

The Forth & Clyde and Union canals, which make up the
Millennium Link, were reopened to great acclaim in May
2001. There was also an official reopening by HM The
Queen in May 2002, when The Falkirk Wheel, which
connects the two canals, was opened. Hundreds of people
turned out for the celebrations both on and off the water.
The participation in the events demonstrated the wide
support in the community for this new resource. The project
involved raising the A80 by nearly 2.5 metres, building 19
new bridges and constructing the UK’s first drop lock. It is

1 Anderton Boat Lift restored in 2002.

2 Rochdale Canal restored in 2002.

3 Restored lock and bridge near Shireoakes on the
Chesterfield Canal.

4 The opening of the Forth & Clyde Canal in 2001.

5 Signing our Joint Venture in Malaysia.

6 A new generation of waterway users.4 5

6

“ ”
“Work on the remaining
first phase of regeneration
and restorations is going
according to plan and 
next year will see more
celebrations and
reopenings”
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now vital that others work with us to
ensure that the catalytic effect of the
project to create lasting jobs and wealth
is grasped (see page 44). 

May 2001 also saw the reopening of
the Huddersfield Narrow Canal. This
was a towering achievement for all the
partners involved. The restoration took
just under two years and involved the
creation of six new locks, twelve new
bridges and two new tunnels. All this
was in addition to the ambitious
restoration of Britain’s highest, longest
and deepest canal tunnel at Standedge.

In March 2002 I was privileged to
formally reopen Anderton Boat Lift.
Originally constructed in 1875 to
carry barges of salt, coal and clay, 
the Lift was eventually abandoned 
in 1983 after it became unsafe and
funds were not available at that time
for its restoration. Our partnership
work has raised the funds to ensure
that it will again be able to transport
boats from the Trent & Mersey Canal
to the River Weaver 50 feet below. 

Work on the remaining first phase of
regeneration and restorations is going
according to plan and next year will
see more celebrations and reopenings
(see page 32).

On the Montgomery Canal, partnership
with the Heritage Lottery Fund and
other partners is funding important
work to develop a management plan
for the waterway. This plan is vital if
we are to look after this internationally

recognised environmental asset and
see the economic and social benefits
of restoration realised.

EDUCATING AND INVOLVING 
THE NEXT GENERATION
Partnership is also helping us reach
out to the young. In August 2001, I
was delighted to ‘Tie-The-Knot’ with
the Inland Waterways Association and
The Waterways Trust. Our new
partnership called WOW (Wild over
Waterways) is developing and will
provide interactive and fun waterway
education programmes to fit with the
National Curriculum. WOW will reach a
target audience of 7-11 year olds in
three ways – through schools, via the
internet (www.wow4water.net) and at
a series of fun events.

With the regeneration and restoration
of many of our waterways, exciting
engineering projects, increased leisure
use and greater environmental
awareness amongst young people,
this is the ideal time to involve and
inspire children about waterways.

In October our partnership in London
with The Waterways Trust and
Beauchamp Lodge supported by
London’s Waterway Partnership and
private partners, launched the first
floating classroom since the 1960s.
These will help children explore and
experience the canals and the life
they support all year round using
innovative hands-on activities (see
page 39).

321

”“
“With the regeneration and
restoration of many of our
waterways, exciting
engineering projects,
increased leisure use and
greater environmental
awareness, this is the ideal
time to involve and inspire
children about waterways”
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41 Grass-cutting on the Lee & Stort
Navigation.

2 The Montgomery Canal.
3 ‘WOW’ provides interactive and fun

waterway education programmes.
4 The Cotswold Canals, a future waterway

restoration project.
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NEW PARTNERSHIPS FOR
REGENERATION & RESTORATION
I was delighted to be involved in new
partnerships to restore the Cotswold
Canals and the Manchester, Bolton &
Bury Canal and to create the 21st
century’s first new canal, the Bedford
& Milton Keynes Waterway. These
partnerships will form an important
part of the second phase of projects
to restore waterways which also
include the Bow Back Rivers in
London, the Droitwich Canals, the
Foxton Inclined Plane, the Northern
Reaches of the Lancaster Canal, the
Leeds & Liverpool Canal extension
into Liverpool and Phase One of the
Montgomery Canal (see page 32).

STAFF AND SYSTEMS
BW’s people continue to accept the
challenges they are set and everything
we have achieved is down to their
hard work, enthusiasm and dedication.
Contribution-based pay is at the heart
of how we financially reward our staff. 

Productive staff need to be supported
by excellent information and decision-
making systems. We are investing in
an improved voice and data network
based on the fibre optic network in
our towpaths. The Board has given the
go ahead for a major investment in IT
systems to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of our team.

We are using major IT services
company Logica plc to develop our IT
strategy, to deliver new systems, and

to manage continued development of
technology across the business.

Our recent staff survey showed
increases in overall job satisfaction and
satisfaction with BW as an employer.
80% of staff felt motivated in their
present job. We are in the top quartile
of UK organisations benchmarked on
this criterion. A key strength of our
staff is how they identify with and
support the work we do. Another
strength is undoubtedly the energy and
enthusiasm with which they carry out
their work. I pay tribute to them all. We
pay special attention to the way we
manage business risk and a statement
on this is included on page 64.

THE FUTURE
BW has a well thought through and
achievable long-term plan. I am
confident that we are developing the
right modern framework and that, with
the continued support of government
and partners, the vision in Our Plan
for the Future 2002-2006 will
become reality. BW has an excellent
team of Executive and Regional
Directors and Waterway Managers
who are skilled at balancing priorities
and are innovative in looking for
opportunities to create new income to
improve the services we provide.

I am in my seventh and last year of
leading this team. This period has
given birth to the renaissance of our
modern waterways and it has been a
great privilege to have held such a

pivotal position at this special time. I
have planted seeds which will flower
perennially in the years to come.
The harvest is a unique blend of
heritage and environmental
sensitivity, coupled with modern
technology. We adopt commercial
best practice but always with a
social conscience; we exploit the
waterways for their widest possible
regeneration benefit while still
giving visitors a tranquil idyll to
enjoy. We have learned to be
innovative and brave in our
challenges to conventional wisdom,
never to take ‘no’ for an answer, and
always to bear in mind that we are
here to serve our customers.

I look forward with considerable
enthusiasm to becoming, for many
decades ahead, a user and
volunteer of the waterways, and to
working in partnership with BW,
which I am confident will go from
strength to strength.

Dave Fletcher
Chief Executive
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“I look forward with considerable enthusiasm
to becoming, for many decades ahead, a
user and volunteer of the waterways, and
working in partnership with BW, which I am
confident will go from strength to strength”
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Navigation is at the heart of what we do. Over 26,000
boats are licensed on our waterways and over 250,000
people enjoy a holiday or trip on a boat on one of our
canals or rivers each year. Boats change the character
of still water to make it vibrant and attractive to visitors.
Of the 160 million visits to our waterways each year,
many are enhanced by the presence of boats. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW 
OF NAVIGATION
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AT OUR HEART

Investment in navigation is not just
investment in leisure and tourism, it is
an investment in all our futures.
Navigation directly generates income
and jobs. We can see what has
happened to some communities in the
past where navigation has ceased and
the benefits it creates when it returns.

A living navigation is also a symbol of
a secure infrastructure. These vibrant,
living assets are attractive to be
beside and to watch. They are a linear
green corridor for tourism and
communities.

GROWTH
In the last ten years the number of
boats on our system has grown on
average by 2% each year. Last year we
saw a further 4% rise in boats licensed.

In the business sector we have seen
the expansion of the timeshare boat
market. This reflects the adaptation of
the market to new consumer patterns.
We now have a special licence
category for these boats and a fee
structure that reflects the market and
the use of the boats. Hire boat
numbers have held up well despite the
problems that Foot and Mouth disease

posed for the tourism industry and we
expect a further recovery next year. 

Mooring permits are up 7.4% this 
year which reflects our increase 
in provision of off-line moorings,
including the acquisition of marinas
when appropriate.

Our approach to pricing has remained
consistent. We are required by
government to act commercially. We
research widely what users and
customers will pay and benchmark
against other providers of services and
facilities. Over the past three years
licence fees have increased at the
rate of inflation.

Market-based pricing is also why this
year we sought to achieve even
greater market transparency by
displaying all our own moorings prices
and availability on our website, along
with as much data on private sector
prices as we can source. This allowed
us to carry out a thorough review of
our moorings prices with increases
which averaged 5.7% across the
country, although with larger increases
in London and the South East where
demand is very strong.

1 Central York on the River Ouse.
2 These boats at Nottingham are

among the 26,000 boats licensed on
our waterways.

3 Marina at Goytre Wharf on the
Monmouthshire & Brecon Canal.

4 The number of moorings available on our
waterways is increasing.

5 Narrowboats are one of the unique sights
on inland waterways.

1
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2 3 4

5“ ”
“Navigation directly generates
income and jobs”
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We are developing a new moorings
grading scheme to make it easier for
users to assess the level of facilities at
a particular site and we hope the
private sector will want to use the
same system.

Overall boat statistics for the last 
two years are summarised in the 
table left.

The network is capable, with careful
management, of accommodating many
years of growth in boat numbers. The
creation of new and improved facilities
coupled with new and reopened
canals will provide a complete range
of environments, from fully serviced
urban locations to the most secluded
and tranquil rural areas.

We are working closely with other
navigation authorities in the
Association of Inland Navigation
Authorities (AINA) to develop the
network and to share best practice to
achieve the highest possible levels of
customer service.

For example, this year, in partnership
with the Environment Agency (EA), we
are piloting a new Eastern Rivers
Licence.  The new licence has been
introduced in response to requests
from both EA and BW ‘river-only’
users. It is similar in principle to the
Gold Licence in offering year-round
access to both EA and BW
navigations, but its use is restricted to
the specified rivers of both navigation
authorities in the East of England.  

INVESTMENT IN WATERWAY
STANDARDS AND CUSTOMER
SERVICE
We have made good progress over
the last year by investing £21.8 million
in improving waterway standards and
customer facilities, as summarised in
the tables opposite.

We are on target to meet all our plans
for waterway standards for 2006-
2007, despite progress on improving
channel standards being held back by
access problems caused by last year’s
outbreak of Foot and Mouth disease.
Over the next five years we are
planning to spend at unprecedented
high levels to achieve modern
expectations from waterway standards
and in particular for repairs and
improvements (detailed in Our Plan
for the Future 2002-2006).

BOAT SAFETY SCHEME
This year, the independent review of
the Boat Safety Scheme (BSS) was
completed. We accepted the
conclusions of the review. In
partnership with the Environment
Agency, and after extensive
consultation with users and others, we
have made a number of changes to
make the scheme simpler and easier
to understand. Some of the standards
have been made advisory, but remain
highly recommended. The critical
safety standards remain mandatory.

To help boaters better understand the
part they must play in safety we have
produced a new Boat Safety Scheme
Guide that explains the risks and how
to achieve compliance with the
standards. The guide contains helpful
illustrations, examples of how things can
go wrong and tips from BSS examiners.
We have sent the guide to everyone
who has a BW powered-boat licence.

We have also developed a BSS
website (www.boatsafetyscheme.com)
that has an online copy of the guide,
news and views, and other information
on safety. The next phase of
development will contain a dedicated
area, along with updates on safety,
encouraging everyone that uses a
boat on our navigations to appreciate
the risks involved.

“”
“We have made good
progress over the last 
year by investing £21.8
million in improving
waterway standards and
customer facilities”

BOATS LICENSED IN 
ENGLAND & WALES

2000/01 2001/02
PRIVATE PLEASURE BOATS – 

CANALS & RIVERS

Powered 18,699 19,565

Unpowered 166 118

Total 18,865 19,683

PRIVATE PLEASURE BOATS – RIVERS

Powered 3,453 3,581

Unpowered 498 382

Total 3,951 3,963

Hire craft – canals 1,303 1,269

Hire craft – rivers only 155 156

Other business craft 770 897

Houseboats 357 366

Total long term licences 25,401 26,334

Short term licences 3,974 4,012

Mooring permits issued 7,025 7,546

Licensing figures for BW Scotland are shown
in the Review of Operations, Scotland on 
page 45.
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CUSTOMER SERVICE INITIATIVES

Work carried out 2000/01 2001/02 2002/03 Target
Canals restored to navigation (miles) 51 63 28

Canals dredged (miles) 89 70 58

Lock gates replaced 196 271 199

Lock structures repaired 152 150 135

Lock surroundings repaired 153 195 158

Lock paddles replaced 348 282 275

Flood paddles replaced 32 31 24

Tunnels repaired 2 2 1

Bridges repaired 153 137 105

Reservoirs repaired 22 13 10

Feeders improved (miles) 14 9 16

Towpaths improved (miles) 109 83 127

Hedges laid/cut (miles) 530 629 696

Visitor moorings (number of individual moorings created) 402 482 827

Listed/schedule buildings improved (number) 46 73 48

Service blocks built (number) 11 19 65

Service blocks improved (number) 13 15 42

Additional waterpoints (number) 74 280 129

WATERWAY STANDARDS

Navigation Standard 2000/01 2001/02 2006/07 Target
% % %

N1 3 3 3

N2 13 14 5

N3 15 16 21

N4 48 49 53

N5 11 9 4

N6 8 8 4

N7 2 1 1

Total 100 100 100

Channel Availability 2000/01 2001/02 2006/07 Target
% % %

C1 32 38 51

C2 45 44 44

C3 23 18 5

Total 100 100 100

Environs Standard 2000/01 2001/02 2006/07 Target
% % %

E1 2 2 4

E2 27 27 38

E3 61 64 53

E4 10 7 5

Total 100 100 100

Towpath Standard 2000/01 2001/02 2006/07 Target
% % %

T1 4 5 9

T2 29 26 37

T3 49 51 39

T4 4 4 2

T5 14 14 13

Total 100 100 100
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We are also carrying out a number of
other educational initiatives including
an awareness programme on the
dangers of carbon monoxide
poisoning and advice on how to
prevent electric shocks.

BOATERS’ HANDBOOK
Again in partnership with the
Environment Agency and with help
from the British Marine Federation 
and boaters we have published The
Boaters’ Handbook.

The handbook is a detailed ‘Highway
Code’ for the waterways. It is an
illustrated, easy to read book that
includes real-life examples. It has been
sent out to all our boat licence holders
and is also available online at
www.aina.org.uk/handbook

LOOKING AHEAD
In March 2002 at our well-attended
public event ‘Unlocked & Unlimited’
we celebrated our first phase of
restorations completed as part of
Tranche 1, and confirmed the
restorations which we will undertake
this decade as part of Tranche 2. The
current projects listed here represent
220 miles of restored navigation and
is nothing short of a modern
renaissance for our waterways.

Huddersfield Narrow Canal
Opened May 2001 
Anderton Boat Lift
Opened March 2002
Millennium Link
Opened May 2002
The Falkirk Wheel
Opened May 2002
Millennium Ribble Link
Open for commissioning July 2002
Expected opening September 2002
Rochdale Canal
Open for commissioning July 2002
Expected opening October 2002
Chesterfield Canal
Expected opening December 2002
Kennet & Avon Canal
Expected opening December 2002

With our enthusiastic and essential
partnerships, this renaissance will
continue with a further nine projects
(listed below), that will open up nearly
100 miles of waterways for life-giving
regeneration.

Bedford & Milton Keynes
Waterway
Bow Back Rivers
Cotswold Canals
Droitwich Canals
Foxton Inclined Plane
Leeds & Liverpool Canal
Extension
Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal
Montgomery Canal
Northern Reaches of the 
Lancaster Canal

1 Bow Mills on the Bow Back Rivers,
London.

2 Families enjoying a day out 
beside the River Trent.

3 The Pontcysyllte Aqueduct on the
Llangollen Canal.

1 2

We intend to publish a visionary plan
for future regeneration, restoration
and renewal for the nation’s
waterways at the end of the year. 
This plan will build on the recently
published reports on the waterways 
by the Inland Waterways Amenity
Advisory Council (IWAAC) and the
Association of Inland Navigation
Authorities (AINA).
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Although the primary purpose of navigations is boating,
their wider use in regeneration and improving the lives
of all people is, in our modern era, essential. Indeed
navigations alone, without a wider holistic vision, are just
not sustainable.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW OF OUR
IMPACT ON THE WIDER WORLD
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events

community consultation

outreach programmes

volunteers

community boats

visitor attractions

leaflet drops

Community engagement

physical works to create

or improve access

infrastructure improvements

in deprived areas

access for all project

aids for people with disabilities

Increasing and improving
access onto the network

programmed school visits

education packs

teacher training

floating classrooms

new deal programmes

heritage & environmental training                  

 Education/training
lighting

cctv

design out of danger spots

formal police liaison

Community safety

Social 
benefits

Our remit is to promote and
facilitate the balance between:

Increased use and enjoyment
of the network by all
members of society.
Effective conservation and
enhancement of the nation’s
biodiversity, landscapes and
built environment.
Job creation through
increased economic activity
and wealth.

EXAMPLES OF SOCIAL BENEFITS OFFERED BY WATERWAYS

1
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“Building London’s first
floating classroom since
the 1960s has offered
school children an
alternative way to
discover the waterways”

2

1 Waterways offer a great habitat for

many plant and animal species.

2 The Laburnum Boat Club in Hackney,

London, offers these children a chance

to participate in boating.
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SENSITIVE RESTORATION
The Millennium Ribble Link, the
restoration that essentially is
canalising what once was a brook, 
has provided us with some interesting
environmental challenges. Despite
canalisation, the work on the
Millennium Ribble Link will ultimately
improve conditions for wildlife. It will
help control the water levels and
should enable more water plants to
grow along the margins. Wherever
possible, environmentally friendly ‘soft’
bank protection is being used along
the new section of the canal. Hazel
faggots, formed with hazel twigs and
coir rolls made out of coconut fibre,
are secured to the banks with timber
posts. On our ecologists’ advice we
waited for the nesting Sand Martins to
leave in September before installing
innovative homes for their return.
Made of sand and cement-filled barrels,
drilled with holes, the Sand Martins
now have a choice of nesting holes -
the new barrels or the natural banks
that were conserved during the works. 

HERITAGE TRAINING 
SKILLS CENTRE
In August our Heritage Training Skills
Centre at Hatton was given the status
of City & Guilds ‘Approved Centre’ for
training and assessment purposes.
The Centre, for which a Business
Development Manager was appointed
in February 2002, has already run
‘schools fortnights’, a course for the
University of Central England, on-site
training for the Waterways Recovery
Group and was praised by De
Montfort University for its efforts to
raise conservation standards through
heritage training in June 2001.

PROTECTING BATS
We have Biodiversity Action Plans
(BAPs) to help us manage and look
after the species and habitats found in
and around our waterways. Bats
feature as a protected species in the
government’s UK BAP, as well as our
own local BAPs. We have recruited a
bat specialist to help manage our
large population of rare and protected
bat species and train staff to do the
same. Before any maintenance work
is carried out, built structures are
inspected for bats and, where
necessary, they are removed and 
re-housed. Pictured here, BW bat
specialist Dr Mark Robinson checks
Dundas Aqueduct on the Kennet &
Avon Canal for bats before
conservation work begins.

Properly managed, waterways provide social, environmental and
heritage benefits for the nation. We work hard to encourage all
members of society to use our waterways, whilst properly
managing their unique natural and built environment. In everything 
we do, we positively manage and develop them for future
generations to enjoy.

The achievement of these objectives is best illustrated by a few current examples: 
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ACCESS FOR ALL
A scheme to make it easier for groups
of all abilities to visit and enjoy the
waterways has been set up in Ratho,
just outside Edinburgh. Working with
the Edinburgh Green Belt Trust, ECAS,
and the Ratho Environment Group and
Steering Group has helped us provide
easily accessible towpaths and car
park, specially designed picnic areas,
new resting places and a sensory
hedge for all visitors to this area.
These facilities complement those of
our other partners at Ratho, The
Seagull Trust, who operate specially
adapted craft for people of all abilities
to take to the waterways. 

FLOATING CLASSROOM
Building London’s first floating
classroom since the 1960s has
offered school children in inner
London an alternative way to discover
the waterways. The boat, which has a
permanent crew and teacher, is owned
by The Waterways Trust and run by
local charity Beauchamp Lodge
Settlement. London’s Waterway
Partnership, Paddington Basin
Developments Ltd, New Life of
Paddington, Cleanaway Ltd and
Timeplan Educational Group plc 
were also involved.

NEW DEAL EMPLOYMENT
TRAINING
Waterway improvements can be allied
to the government’s New Deal
employment training. BW has worked
in partnership with Newport County
Borough Council, Monmouthshire,
Brecon & Abergavenny Canal Trust,
Hemmings Waste – Bristol, and Corus
– British Steel, on the Monmouthshire
& Brecon Canal, where training
projects have been based around
towpath improvements and lock gate
construction.
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Change has been a constant theme for BW in 
Scotland this year. Our engineering expertise has 
been complemented by a range of skills new to the
organisation to ensure we are able to maximise the
value of an unprecedented investment in Scotland’s
inland waterways. 

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS, SCOTLAND
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The Falkirk Wheel, Scotland, the world's first rotating boat lift.
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Change has been a constant theme
for BW in Scotland this year. Our
engineering expertise has been
complemented by a range of skills
new to the organisation to ensure we
are able to maximise the value of an
unprecedented investment in
Scotland’s inland waterways. In April
2001 the waterways in Scotland
became fully devolved and
accountable to the Scottish
Parliament. We now receive funding
directly from the Scottish Executive.

Scotland’s canals have been providing
tremendous opportunities for leisure,
tourism and freight for years. In
2001/02 we were able to begin
bringing those benefits to the great
majority of Scotland’s population with
the reopening of the Millennium Link.

DEVOLUTION
This has been the first full year in
which BW’s activities in Scotland
received core funding directly from the
Scottish Executive. We welcome the
support of the Executive and we
particularly welcome an additional
£1.5 million of funding announced in
May 2001 towards the development
of the canals in Scotland. Among
other things this extra money enabled
us to dredge heavy contamination
from Lock 5 to Ladysmill in Falkirk on
the Forth & Clyde Canal; carry out
emergency backpumping to maintain

water supplies on the Crinan Canal
and restore Leamington Bridge near
Lochrin on the Union Canal as a fully
operating opening bridge rather than a
fixed bridge.

We also have the strength of the
whole of BW behind us. We could not
cover all the risks associated with our
business without that backing. Our
total expenditure in 2001/02 was 
£4 million more than our direct income
and grant from the Scottish Executive.

Last year I reported on the formation of
the BW Scotland Group. This Group is
essential to making a success of
devolution. Whenever possible,
meetings of the Group are followed by
open forums giving opportunities for
individuals and those representing
collective interests to put questions
directly to the Group. We take a close
interest in draft legislative consultation
documents. We have responded to a
number of these including access
issues associated with Land Reform
and the Water Framework Directive
and, of course, the Executive draft
position paper on Scottish canals.

Once again we were delighted by the
strong turnout at our second Scottish
Annual Meeting in September 2001. 
It is an important forum giving
individuals, partners and stakeholders
the opportunity to put questions to us. 

OVERVIEW

Jim Stirling, Director, Scotland
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1 This section of the Union Canal at Wester Hailes, 

near Edinburgh, was rebuilt and re-opened last year.

2 A thistle growing alongside the Forth & Clyde Canal.

3 Interpretation point on the Crinan Canal.

4 Corpach Basin on the Caledonian Canal.

4
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THE MILLENNIUM LINK
The Forth & Clyde Canal was reopened
in May 2001 when over 50,000 people
came out to celebrate over the course
of three days, many of them saying 
that they had thought this would not
happen in their lifetime, if ever.

August 2001 saw the reopening of the
Union Canal. Approximately one mile of
this canal in Wester Hailes was infilled
and piped to make way for a housing
estate in the 1970s. Rebuilding it as
part of the Millennium Link through the
heart of this built up neighbourhood
has transformed an inner city
community who now have a
waterspace to live, work and play
alongside, and be proud of. 

HM The Queen opened The Falkirk
Wheel in May 2002, which marked 
the eagerly awaited completion of 
the Millennium Link. The royal opening
was attended by crowds of people
wanting to see The Falkirk Wheel in
action and catch a glimpse of HM The
Queen on her Golden Jubilee Tour. 
The Scottish Affairs Committee in
Westminster also visited the Millennium
Link last year, after which they
published a report stating that wider
benefits can only be achieved if all the
major stakeholders work together and
are determined to deliver. 

The success of the Millennium Link will
be measured in years to come as wider
regeneration takes hold. I believe that
our role in supporting the country’s
economy received a massive boost with
the opening of The Falkirk Wheel, and
we are only just starting to realise the
potential role waterways can play in
regeneration. I would like to thank all
the partners who worked so hard and
who volunteered and supported us in

undertaking a great engineering feat
that will remain a living testament to
modern waterway regeneration for
many years to come.

ECONOMY, ENVIRONMENT
& COMMUNITIES
Now the Lowland Canals have been
restored and opened we need, with 
the active help of partners, to put more
resources into wider regeneration
around the waterways and thereby
begin to realise the real potential of all
our waterways in Scotland.

Our Edinburgh Quay project received
planning consent and we are excited
by the potential of this high quality
development to demonstrate the real
possibilities for appropriate
development in and around the canals
in Scotland. With planning consent
granted, a contractor in place, the loan
finance secured and the site for the
early phase cleared, we are looking
forward to construction beginning
soon. At the same time we are
exploring a major development
opportunity in Glasgow in conjunction
with the City Council, as well as
working with Falkirk Council and
Scottish Enterprise Forth Valley to
maximise benefits from the reopened
canals in the Falkirk area.

Scotland is now recognised as one 
of the most attractive locations for
activity holidays. The Great Glen Raid,
attracting boats from all over Europe,
continues to be held on the Caledonian
Canal, and work is underway to secure
more events for both the Highland and
Lowland Canals.

The outbreak of Foot & Mouth disease
earlier in 2001 compelled BW to act.
Our rigorous approach gave us the

confidence to be one of the first
organisations in Scotland to remove
access restrictions. We acted
prudently and quickly, and put in place
a complete set of risk assessments.
All Scotland’s canals were assessed
as being safe to use, with mitigating
measures, before the end of the
winter engineering works. We carried
out simultaneous risk assessments on
the use of our towpaths as well as our
waters. With appropriate safety
measures in place, almost all our
towpaths were open for use before
the end of March 2001.

The Crinan Canal celebrated its 200th
anniversary in 2001, and continues to
be a major destination for many
boaters as well as providing freight
opportunities. Our Timberlink
Programme, a partnership project
designed to promote shipment by sea
involving Associated British Ports,
Forest Enterprise, Argyll and Bute
Council and a number of other locally
based harbours, continues to handle
50,000 tonnes of freight transfer at
Ardrishaig Harbour and supports local
hauliers with transfer to the quayside.

We are also involved in the freight
transfer scheme, which is taking 2,500
lorries off the road – a welcome
bonus for the local community. 

We are also contributing to and
supporting a feasibility study
instigated by Forest Enterprise and
The Waterways Trust into an exciting
initiative with the working title
‘Landscapes in Time.’ This aims to
generate a significant increase in
tourism.

The Caledonian Canal introduced
improvements to its operating hours

1 This former warehouse, Speirs Wharf,

in Glasgow has been redeveloped to

incorporate office, accommodation

and retail space

2 Cairnbaan on the Crinan Canal.
1 2
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and licence structure in 2001.
Passage licences were extended to
include eight days use of the canal at
no extra cost. This doubled the
average time that boats spent within
the canal.  Operating hours were
extended to provide better weekend
and evening opening. This proved
popular with customers and
contributed to an 8.6% rise in licences
sold. In 2002 seven day opening is
being trialed for the whole season.

SUPPORT AND PARTNERSHIP
This last year has been a year of 
great engineering achievement,
significant organisational and cultural
change and of building on important
relationships with the Scottish
Executive and key partners.

We are an organisation still in transition,
but one that has a strong team all of
whom are committed and working hard
to get things right. I am genuinely
privileged to have such a dedicated and
supportive team of people in Scotland. 
I would like to thank all of them for
their skill, hard work and friendship.

My thanks also to everyone outside
BW. I know that it hasn’t always been
easy. I do want to thank you for all your
support and patience. It has been a
momentous year and I look forward to
putting Scotland’s canals well and truly
on the map in the years to come.

Jim Stirling
Director, Scotland

3 4

3 Avon Aqueduct on the Union Canal.

4 HM The Queen opening The Falkirk

Wheel in May 2002.

BOATS LICENSED IN SCOTLAND FOR 2001/02

Under 3 Over 3 
Months Months Total

Caledonian Canal 1056 200 1256

Crinan Canal* 1220 72 1292

Lowland Canals 111 81 192

Total 2387 353 2740

* There were 984 commercial long-term user lockings & lay up
days for the Crinan Canal 
There were 65 commercial freight ship visits to the
Crinan Canal 



FINANCIAL REVIEW, SCOTLAND

Direct income reduced from its record level of
£33.3 million in 2000/01 to £12.8 million, primarily as a
result of the Millennium Link Project entering its final
stages and the level of contributions reducing from £31.8
million to £11.3 million in line with expectations. 

Other commercially earned income increased by 5% to
£1.5 million, mainly as a result of increased income 
from property.

From 1 April 2001 grant is receivable from the Scottish
Executive. In previous years grant was allocated to
Scotland from the overall grant received from central
government for England, Scotland and Wales combined. 

The level of BW funding required in excess of grant
received from government, rose from last year’s £0.9 million
to £3.7 million this year, demonstrating BW’s investment in
Scotland’s canals to secure future economic benefits.

During the year interest receivable on loans made to
Edinburgh Quay Ltd, an associate company set up to
develop property in Edinburgh, amounted to £0.2 million.

The value of fixed assets increased by £2.3 million to
£12.6 million, including £1.9 million ongoing investment in
the Falkirk Visitor Centre, situated alongside The Falkirk
Wheel, and £0.3 million in visitor moorings. Further
commercial investments in Scotland, are planned for the
forthcoming year.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

YEAR TO 31 MARCH 2002

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

Direct income 12,823 33,309 

Scottish Executive grant 1 8,600 10,541 

Total revenue 21,423 43,850 

Major repairs and renovations (16,981) (37,964)

Other operating charges (4,792) (3,960)

Staff costs (3,810) (3,357)

Depreciation (258) (263)

Own work capitalised or charged to major works 416 744

Total expenditure (25,425) (44,800)

Operating loss (4,002) (950)

Profit on sale of investment properties 61 4 

Interest receivable 240 -   

Loss for the financial year (3,701) (946)

Transfer of profits on sale of properties to realised capital reserve (61) (4)

Loss transferred from reserves (3,762) (950)
NOTE: 1 In 2000/01 the grant was received from the Department of Environment, Transport and the Regions. From 1 April 2001 separate is received

from the Scottish Executive.
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Analysis of fixed assets 31 March 2002 31 March 2001

£000 £000

a) Tangible fixed assets (net book value)

Freehold land, building and structures – operational 3,139 1,905 

Freehold land, building and structures – investment 7,428 7,478 

Craft plant and equipment 2,024 953 

12,591 10,336 

b) Investments

Shares at cost:

Balance at 31 March 1 1 

Loan to Edinburgh Quay Ltd:

Balance at 1 April 1,339 939 

Additions - 400 

Balance at 31 March 1,339 1,339 

Net book amount at 31 March 1,340 1,340 

ISSUED SHARE EQUITY 

CAPITAL INTEREST HELD

£ %

Edinburgh Quay Limited 100 49

New Waterside Developments (Scotland) Ltd 100 49
NOTE: All the above companies are unlisted and are registered and operate in the United Kingdom. Edinburgh Quay Ltd's principal activity is 

property development in Edinburgh. New Waterside Developments (Scotland) Limited is a dormant company. BWs’ investment in these 

undertakings is shown in the balance sheet at cost less provisions for impairment. The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the 

profit and loss for the year of each associated undertaking, based on accounts made up to the dates indicated, was as follows:
ISSUED SHARE EQUITY 

CAPITAL INTEREST HELD

£000 £000

Edinburgh Quay Limited (31 December 2001) (587) (348)
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The financial results for the year reflect the significant one-off gain
from the sale of property rights that increased profit before tax to
£36.5 million from £4.6 million last year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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The financial results for the year
reflect the significant one-off gain
from the sale of property rights that
increased profit before tax to £36.5
million from £4.6 million last year.

The profit figure reflects the timing
differences between when we have to
account for the transaction in the
Profit and Loss account and the actual
cash flows involved. 

This difference will also result in a
reported loss next year when most of
the related investment expenditure
from the proceeds occurs. Our
breakeven target for transfers to P&L
reserves over the medium term is 
not affected. 

As with our other income streams, we
have made clear and detailed plans to
re-invest this gain within the business,
and to maximise value from it. The
proceeds will play a central part in
meeting our published targets for
eliminating arrears of maintenance,
providing increased customer facilities
and improving channel dimensions.

Some of this expenditure has already
taken place. This is reflected within
the increased operating loss this year
because the corresponding income
appears within the exceptional gain
separately on the face of the P&L
account.

The successful culmination of the first
phase of our flagship restoration
programme is described in the Chief
Executive’s Review. Major re-openings
this year, with the remaining Tranche
schemes completed in the early part
of the new financial year, are the
background to launching the second
phase based on the theme of the
‘Unlocked & Unlimited’ potential of
canal corridors for regeneration.

We are, therefore, now at a point in
the restoration cycle where lead times
are needed to secure funding and
consents on these large and complex
schemes. This means that this
element of our turnover is lower than
in the two previous years. 

This is to be expected given that
these major schemes are typically
structured into five-year programmes,
primarily funded by a large number of
third parties. The effect of the cut over
from one phase to the next is
magnified by changes to the funding
regimes with, for instance, the winding
down of the Millennium Commission. 

We are therefore planning lower levels
of restoration turnover for the next
two years with significant uplifts from
2004-05. More details are given in
our stakeholder publication Our Plan
for the Future 2002-2006.

OVERVIEW

Mark Smith, Finance Director
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“ ”
“Total commercially earned income
increased by 9% (£5.7 million) to 
£68.0 million and represents 39% 
of the total turnover of the business”

Limehouse Basin, London
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DIRECT INCOME
Total commercially earned income
increased by 9% (£5.7 million) to
£68.0 million and represents 39% of
the total turnover of the business, up
from 33% last year. 

Property income showed an increase of
9% (£2.4 million) from 2000/01 to
£28.8 million due mainly to increased
income from new investments, including
the full year effect of rents received
from the properties acquired from Port
of London Authority in March 2001. 

Leisure income increased by 14%
(£2.5 million) to £19.9 million. This was
principally due to craft licence and
mooring income reflecting the
additional services being made available
to our boating customers, increased
rents from leisure property and
increased retail turnover from our new
visitor centres and marina operations.

Total income from business to business
contracts (commercial uses) which
comprises telecommunications, water
sales, tolls and dues, reduced by 6%
(£0.8 million) to £11.8 million. Income
from telecommunications increased by
6% to £6.9 million with £6.5 million
from the contract for fibre optics along
the towpath. Water sales reduced by
16% to £4.1 million, mainly as the
previous year had included funding for
infrastructure works completed last
Spring. Income from tolls and dues
reduced by 35% to £0.8 million due to
a reduction in construction traffic in
London Docklands.

GOVERNMENT GRANT
Revenue grant from government
accrued in the year increased by 4%
(£2.6 million) to £64.6 million. The total
cash grant originally awarded to BW
for 2001/02 was £52.6 million from
DEFRA and £7.1 million from the
Scottish Executive. During the year, the
government made an additional £5.0
million available for accelerating our
targets for statutory maintenance
arrears, and a further £4.0 million as a

contribution to the upgrading and
replacement of operational plant and
vehicles. The Scottish Executive also
made a further £1.5m grant available
for funding on the Lowlands Canals. A
reconciliation between total cash and
accrued revenue is set out in Note 2 to
the accounts.

EXPENDITURE
Using our Asset Management Process,
we are targeting maintenance
expenditure more effectively and as a
result, expenditure on high priority
maintenance on the existing canal and
river network increased by 21% (£4.8
million) to £28.3 million. This included
expenditure on the safety-related
maintenance backlog which reduced by
a further £17 million to £39.9 million
(2001: £56.9m) in line with the target
to have eliminated the safety-related
maintenance backlog entirely by
December 2004.

Non-staff operating costs, which
include day to day maintenance
expenditure, increased by 13% (£5.8
million) to £49.4 million reflecting our
commitment to improved waterway
standards. 

Staff costs increased by 10%
(£4.8 million) to £52.1 million, 
mainly reflecting the increase in the
headcount needed to staff newly
restored waterways and visitor
attractions.

REGENERATION AND
RESTORATION 
As the first group of waterway
restorations come to their completion,
contribution income has reduced by
35% (£23.6 million) to £43.0 million as
explained in the overview section
above. There was an approximately
equal drop in the expenditure on these
schemes. There is therefore no impact
on the bottom line.

CORPORATION TAX 
A provision of £4.3 million (2001: £0.9
million) has been held for current and

previous year corporation tax liabilities
which have arisen on trading account
and capital gains. Planned losses in
future years arising from the re-
investment of the remaining proceeds
from the sale of property rights and
capital investment qualifying for roll-
over relief will reduce this provision,
but tax will be payable on the
remaining gains which do not qualify
for roll-over relief. 

In accordance with FRS19 “Deferred
Tax”, which does not require a provision
for deferred tax on future property
profits, the £7.4 million opening
provision for deferred taxation is no
longer required.

Tax losses carried forward at 31 March
2001 increased to £5.9 million (2000:
£5.2 million).

SCOTLAND
BW is a single legal entity and
operates on a cross border basis.
However, the waterways in Scotland
are deficit grant funded directly by the
Scottish Executive. An operations and
financial review and pro forma
accounts for Scotland can be found on
pages 40 to 47.

FIXED ASSETS
BW’s investment properties are carried
at a value at 31 March 2002 of
£293 million, which is at a similar level
to 31 March 2001. This carrying value
is based on a valuation at 31
December 2001, performed by Gerald
Eve. Within the total there was an
increase in the valuation of £15.8
million on properties held at the
beginning of the year, and investment
property additions during the year were
£6.0 million (2001: £31.2 million).
These gains were offset by disposals
of £21.2 million arising mainly from
property disposals already contracted
for disposal at the end of 2000/01.

The value of investment properties sold
during the year was £21.2 million
(2000/01: £5.2 million) at a profit of
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INCOME

2001/02 2000/01
Investment property £m £m
Value at 1 April 293.2 247.7
Additions1 6.1 32.8
Disposals (21.2) (5.2)
Other movements (1.0) (0.3)
Revaluation 15.8 18.2
Value at 31 March 2002 292.9 293.2

1 Additions in 2000/01 were exceptionally high as BW acquired residual property assets from the Port of London Authority
and reinvested the dowry proceeds from the acquisition of Tees Navigation.

2001/02 2000/01
Summary cash flow £m £m
Operating (loss)/profit (10.0) (0.3)
Non-cash items 4.3 3.2
Increase in working capital 3.4 9.5
Movement on provisions (2.4) 0.3
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (4.7) 12.7
Investment, acquisitions and servicing of finance 6.7 (30.5)
Financing 4.0 2.6
Increase/(decrease) in cash 6.0 (15.2)

2001/02 2000/01
Financial highlights £m £m
Total revenue 175.6 191.0
Total expenditure (185.6) (191.3)
Operating loss (10.0) (0.3)
Profit on sale of investment properties 2.1 5.1
Profit on sale of other property rights 45.9 –
Net interest payable (1.5) (0.2)
Profit for the financial year before taxation 36.5 4.5
Taxation (2.7) (0.1)
Profit for the financial year after taxation 33.8 4.5
Property profits transferred to realised capital reserve (5.9) (5.0)
Profit/(loss) transferred to reserves 27.9 (0.5)

TRADING INCOME

GOVERNMENT GRANT

REGENERATION AND

RESTORATION 
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£2.1 million (2000/01: £5.1 million)
over previous valuations and a further
£14.6 million (2000/01: £4.7 million)
over historic book value. 

The average rental yield on investment
properties based on their opening
value was 0.5% lower than the
previous year at 6.3% (2000/01:
6.8%), with an 18% growth in the
opening net book value of investment
properties and a 9% growth in rents.

The net book value of other fixed
assets at 31 March 2002 totalled
£65.9 million (2001: £55.8 million) of
which £42.6 million relates to
operational land and buildings (2001:
£39.8 million). 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BW’s accounting policies have been
reviewed during the year by the
Committee, in accordance with FRS18
“Accounting Policies”. The policies are
presented on page 68 and 69. There
have been no material changes to the
policies during the year.

CASH FLOWS
Year end cash balances increased by
£5.9 million compared to a decrease of
£15.2 million last year. This was largely
as a result of the receipt of the first
instalment from the sale of property
rights. 

The net cash outflow from operating
activities was £4.7 million (2000/01:
inflow £12.7 million). During the year
BW made a £9.9 million operating loss
(2000/01: £0.3 million) which arises
from increased expenditure funded by
the first tranche of the sale of property
rights. Non-cash items of £4.3 million
include £4.1 million depreciation.

Movements in working capital arose
mainly from £13.0 million cash inflow
from debtors and £0.8 million from the
sale of stock, offset by £10.4 million
reduction in creditors. The £2.4 million
outflow from provision arises mainly
from the payment of corporation tax
arising on current year profits.

The total net cash inflow on
investment, acquisitions and servicing
of finance was £6.7 million (2000/01:
outflow £30.5 million). Receipts from
the sale of fixed assets of £11.9 million
(2000/01: £13.7 million) and the first
tranche from the one-off sale of other
property rights, £16.0 million, increased
more than the gross fixed asset spend
of £18.5 million (2000/01: £44.6
million). 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
The annual grants from DEFRA and
Scottish Executive are received at the
beginning of each month in instalments
equal to BW’s estimated cash
requirement for the month after taking
into account commercial activities. 

Temporary cash surpluses are invested
on the money market until they are
required. The interest likely to be
earned in this way is taken into
account when BW’s grant for the year
end is determined.

In accordance with government policy
BW does not invest cash in equities,
treasury bills, certificates of deposit,
financial derivatives, or in high
return/high risk deposits. BW does not
have any significant level of exposure
to foreign currencies.

BW has a bank overdraft facility of
£3 million for unanticipated cash

The Mailbox development in the heart of

Birmingham, helping to regenerate the city centre.
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requirements. This facility was unused
at both the end of 2001/02 and at the
end of the previous year.

In the past BW was permitted to take
out a limited number of fixed term,
fixed interest loans from the National
Loans Fund. Most of those loans still in
existence date back to the 1970s and
1980s and were related to activities in
which BW is no longer engaged, such
as freight carrying and handling. 

In 1999, the government decided to
make capital contributions to BW to
enable loans maturing before 2013
(£13.2 million at March 2001) to be
repaid as they matured, without BW
having to take out new loans to replace
them.

Capital contributions of £0.4 million
were received during the year enabling
borrowings to be reduced from
£16.7 million to £16.3 million. Details
of outstanding loans are set out in
Note 15 in the accounts. 

Borrowings from the National Loans
Fund as a percentage of reserves and
deferred capital grant at 31 March
2002 fell to 4.5% from 5.5% last year.
The average rate of interest payable
fell slightly from 12% to 11.7%
reflecting prevailing interest rates at
the time the loans were taken out.

Overall net interest payable was
£1.5 million reflecting lower interest
receivable of £2.3 million (2000/01:
£3.1 million). Interest payable during
the year was £3.8 million (2000/01:
£3.3 million), and comprised payments
on fixed term, fixed interest loans from
the National Loans Fund, interest
credited to provisions and interest

earned from cash deposits, held on
behalf of external project funding
partners, and subsequently repaid as
additional funding to the project. 

GOVERNMENT RESOURCE
ACCOUNTING BUDGET
During the year resource Departmental
Expenditure Limit (DEL), capital DEL
and resource annually managed
expenditure budget limits set by
DEFRA have not been exceeded.

RISK MANAGEMENT
We have introduced the various
elements of best practice risk
management. This helps manage risk
to create opportunities for innovation
and growth as well as identifying
threats to the achievement of our
objectives. We operate in accordance
with guidelines for best practice in
Corporate Governance, in particular
with reference to risk. Our approach to
risk management is given on page 64
which shows the importance attached
to ongoing clarification of risks,
ensuring effective control processes
exist and for embedding risk into BW
culture.

The main risks stem from the ageing
infrastructure for which there is
ongoing inspection, assessment and
prioritisation of remedial action. This
shows safety-related maintenance
backlog costs of £39.9 million at 31
March 2002 which is in line with
internal targets to eliminate the
backlog entirely by the end of 2004.

We are dependent on continued
funding from the government to fulfil
statutory obligations and elimination of
the backlog of maintenance. An
increasingly important source of

funding is by the use of partnerships in
the field of telecommunications,
property and water transfer. These
allow exploitation of BW’s
infrastructure by accessing investment
funds and development expertise.
Processes have been developed for
choosing the right partner, maximising
internal and external resource and
allocating appropriate responsibilities.

We care for the safety of people on the
waterways through safety training,
procedures, signage, regular
maintenance of assets and the
development of relevant competencies.
Our staff have a vast range of expert
skills and experience which, if not fully
unlocked, could result in missed
opportunities for innovation, change
and growth. Much importance is
therefore placed on regular
performance appraisal and individual
development plans. 

In our wider objectives, we have a
commitment to deliver social,
environmental and heritage benefits.
Risk based assessments in
accordance with our Environmental
Code of Practice are applied to all
works undertaken. Safety risks,
vandalism and impediments to access
by all are overcome by our educational
role and community engagement
through organisations with strong
involvement in social inclusion.

Mark Smith 
Finance Director, May 2002

“ ”
“We have introduced the various elements
of best practice risk management”
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STATUTORY BASIS
The British Waterways Board (BW) is a public corporation,
which was established by the Transport Act 1962 to
manage the inland waterways, docks and estates, which
had previously been the responsibility of the British
Transport Commission. 

BW is responsible for approximately 2,000 miles of canals
and river navigations in England, Scotland and Wales,
together with their associated reservoirs, docks, repair
yards and workshops.

The Transport Act 1968 classified these waterways into:
a) The Commercial Waterways, which were to be kept

principally available for the commercial carrying of
freight and maintained in a suitable condition for use by
commercial freight carrying vessels.

b) The Cruising Waterways, which were to be kept
principally available for cruising, fishing and other
recreational purposes and maintained for use by
vessels constructed or adapted for the carriage of
passengers and driven by mechanical power.

c) The Remainder, which have to be dealt with in the most
economical manner possible, consistent, in the case of a
waterway which is retained, with the requirement of
public health and the preservation of amenity and safety.

Under s.27 of the Transport Act 1962, the government
may give directions of a general character to BW as to the
exercise of its functions and in February 1999 the
government published a Framework Document containing
its aims and objectives for BW. Under the terms of the
Framework Document, BW is required by the government
to operate and maintain its waterways to standards that
reflect use and prospects of use and any land drainage
requirements. Such standards do not always fully reflect
the historic standards for the channel dimensions of
Commercial and Cruising Waterways prescribed by the
Transport Act 1968.

The government requirement in the Framework Document
is expressed to be subject to BW’s statutory obligations.
Nevertheless the government (Scottish Ministers in respect
of waterways in Scotland) have power to make Orders

varying the historic standards prescribed in the 1968 Act.
Furthermore, the currently prescribed standards may only
be enforced in special proceedings under that Act. The
government (and Scottish Ministers) have power to
intervene in any such enforcement proceedings and to
curtail them if they certify to the court they intend to make
an Order specifying different statutory standards. This
power may be exercised if compliance with the standards
being enforced under the proceedings would require the
payment of further grant by the government (or Scottish
Executive).

The Framework Document also sets out BW’s wider
relationship with government and responsibilities of the
Board and Chief Executive, as well as setting a framework
for BW’s relations with users, the Waterways Ombudsman
and the Inland Waterways Amenity Advisory Council.

Consistent with its statutory obligations, powers and
objectives agreed with government, BW runs its affairs on
a commercial basis and promotes the fullest use of the
waterways for leisure, recreation and amenity, and freight
transport where appropriate.

GRANT
BW receives an annual grant in monthly instalments from the
government, which assists it in meeting its statutory
obligations, including those services for which government
does not allow it to levy direct charges. From April 2001 BW’s
activities in England and Wales are being funded by DEFRA
and in Scotland are being funded by the Scottish Executive.

Conditions for the payment of grant and details of other
controls applicable to BW as a public corporation are set
out in a Financial Memorandum issued by government.

Part of the grant received from government is used for the
purchase of vehicles, plant and equipment for maintaining
the waterways as economically as possible but on which no
return on investment can be obtained. This is treated in the
accounts as a capital grant and the income deferred and
brought into account in line with the depreciation charges
on the assets concerned.

BW is precluded from drawing government grant in
advance of need. 

STATUTORY AND FINANCIAL FRAMEWORK 
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OBJECTIVE TO AVOID LOSS AND 
NOT DRAW GRANT IN ADVANCE OF NEED
The above requirement of not drawing grant in advance of
need, combined with the statutory responsibility to avoid a
loss on revenue account, taking one year with another,
leads BW to target to break even on profit and loss
account each year.

BORROWINGS AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT
The government sets the maximum amount of grant and
any access to loans from the National Loans Fund to fund
capital expenditure. BW is not allowed long term
borrowings other than from the National Loans Fund. The
limit of all BWs’ borrowings was increased to £35 million
under an order of the Secretary of State for the
Environment in March 2001 exercising powers contained
in the Water Act 1981. The Treasury annually renews
guarantees of bank overdraft facilities in order for BW to
meet day-to-day fluctuations in receipts and payments.

BW’s profit generating capital expenditure can be funded
through access to National Loans Fund loans, subject to
government limits. In recent years BW has only been
permitted to borrow amounts equal to the total of earlier
loans due for repayment. Within these limitations, BW has
been restructuring its asset portfolio by disposal and
reinvestment to improve its ability to achieve its business
objectives. In February 1999 the Deputy Prime Minister
announced that the government had decided to phase out
most of BW’s outstanding debt as it matures, thus
removing from BW the need to take out new loans to
repay existing loans.

BW is also required to obtain government consent for all
expenditure projects over £3 million or when there are
novel or contentious features or to take an interest in a
body corporate in excess of 49%. It is furthermore required
to consult DEFRA or the Scottish Executive at the earliest
stage, in the case of major development proposals where
the value of any BW investment, including the value of land
with planning consent for the proposal, exceeds £3 million.

DETERMINATION OF AVAILABLE FUNDING
The financial resources available to BW during any year are
controlled by the government, which fixes resource and
capital expenditure budgets as part of bi-annual

Comprehensive Spending Reviews spanning three years.
BW manages its expenditure to remain within these
budgets and finances the expenditure from its own earned
income and annual grant from DEFRA and the Scottish
Executive. The grant received from the government during
2001/02 was £70.1m of which £4m was allocated
specifically for expenditure on operational fixed assets.

PREPARATION OF ACCOUNTS
BW is required to prepare audited Annual Accounts which
comply with Companies Act requirements and best
commercial accounting practice, although the information
to be disclosed is amended and extended by Direction of
the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs as shown on pages 66 and 67.

Expenditure on repairs and renewals of the basic canal
infrastructure is written off to profit and loss account as it
is incurred. Investment property is revalued annually by
external valuers.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
BW’s principal activities are set out on page 2.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A detailed review of BW’s performance during the year and
expected future developments is contained in the
Chairman’s Statement, the Chief Executive’s Review of
Operations and in the Financial Review.

RESULTS
The audited accounts for the year ended 31 March 2002
are shown on pages 70 to 86.

The analysis of income and expenditure in the accounts is
based on the current use of waterways rather than their
Transport Act 1968 classification. This provides a more
meaningful presentation but does not affect BW’s statutory
obligations set out in the Transport Act 1968 nor the
restriction upon expenditure which it can incur on
remainder waterways. 

BOARD MEMBERS 
The Board Members who served during the year are shown
on page 4. Susan Achmatowicz, George Fleming, Janet
Lewis-Jones, Adeeba Malik, and Terry Tricker were
appointed Board Members from October 2001 and
Carolan Dobson and Paul King retired from the Board at
the end of September 2001. A Register of Interests is
maintained by the Legal Director through whom public
inspection can be arranged.

STATUTORY MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS
Under its Framework Document, BW is required by the
government to maintain its waterways to standards that
reflect use and prospects of use. Such standards do not
always fully reflect the historic standards prescribed by the
Transport Act 1968. The Board consider compliance with
the Framework Document requirements to be appropriate,
notwithstanding the statutory standards, in the light of the
power of the government (and Scottish Ministers) to make
Orders varying the statutory prescribed standards and to
intervene in any enforcement proceedings. Further details
are given under the description of BW’s statutory and
financial framework on page 58.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of movements in fixed assets during the year,
including the revaluation of investment properties, are set
out in Note 8 to the accounts.

BW does not incorporate revaluations of operational
properties in the accounts. Based upon an external
valuation at 31 December 2001, it is the opinion of the
Board Members that the operational property, excluding 
the canal track, towing paths and reservoirs, has a market
value in the region of £75 million. A tax liability would not
be expected to arise if land and buildings were sold at 
that value.

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
BW has not made any charitable or political contributions.

PAYMENT POLICY
It is BW’s policy to agree payment terms with its suppliers
at the outset of a transaction, and abide by these terms,
subject to satisfactory performance by the supplier and the
timely presentation of an accurate invoice. Amounts owed
to suppliers are generally settled by the end of the month
following receipt of invoice. At the year end, the amount
owed to trade suppliers was equivalent to 8 days credit
(2001: 20 days).

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES 
BW is committed to equality of opportunity and has policies
and procedures in place to ensure continuous
improvement. BW fully recognises its legal responsibilities,
particularly in respect of race relations, sex and disability
discrimination.

EMPLOYEES   
BW places considerable value on the involvement of its
employees and has continued its practice of keeping them
informed on matters affecting them as employees and on
the various factors affecting its performance. This is
achieved through formal and informal meetings allowing
the two-way flow of information between management and
employees, and a monthly newspaper supplemented by
occasional regional information sheets, and employee
surveys.

The Board Members present their annual report on the affairs of BW,
together with the accounts and auditors’ report, for the year ended
31 March 2002.
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BW has common terms and conditions of employment and
single table bargaining with employee representatives
through National, Intermediate and Business Unit Forums.
Consultation on employment and other related matters
takes place at these forums in a spirit of co-operation and
open exchange of information and ideas.

All employees are covered by an annual performance and
development review process.

ENVIRONMENT AND HERITAGE
BW has a structured system in place to identify how work
should be carried out to protect and conserve heritage and
environment. This is guided by our Environmental Code of
Practice (ECP) – our environmental management system. 

BW’s natural and cultural heritage and the requirements to
conserve or improve it are described in a range of
Conservation Plans, Biodiversity Action Plans and a
Heritage Strategy.

AUDIT
PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed as external
auditors of BW for the year ended 31 March 2002 by 
the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs in accordance with Section 24(2) of the Transport
Act 1962.

By order of the Board

Nigel Johnson
Legal Director



62 BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS

Corporate governance is concerned with ensuring that an
organisation is acting in accordance with best practice. The
Combined Code published in 1998 sets out the principles
and provisions for corporate governance. Guidance for
Directors on the internal control requirements of the
Combined Code was published in September 1999.
Detailed below is an explanation of how the Board has
applied the principles of the Combined Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMBINED CODE
The Board considers it has complied throughout the
financial year and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and accounts with the Combined Code, except for
those matters discussed below or those which cannot be
applied to BW.

BW is subject to public sector controls, government
monitoring and approval, Parliamentary scrutiny and
external reviews, including reviews by the Competition
Commission.

BOARD STRUCTURE
The principal difference between BW and listed companies
relates to the structure of the Board and the appointment
of Board Members.

BW is controlled by a Board comprising a Chairman and
Vice Chairman and other Non-Executive Members whose
appointment is fixed for periods of either two or three
years and whose remuneration is set by the Secretary of
State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. As such,
Sections 1A.5, 1A.6 and 1B of the Code relating to the
appointment, re-election and remuneration of Board
Members is not applicable to BW. However there is a
Remuneration Committee comprising five Non-Executive
Board Members which, as its main task, considers annually
the performance of the Executive Directors and determines
their remuneration levels.

The Board meets regularly (seven times during the year)
and brings an independent judgement to bear on financial,
strategic, performance and organisational issues. Reporting
to the Board are Executive Directors who have
responsibility for day to day management. Biographical
details of the Board Members can be found on page 4. All

the Non-Executive Board Members are independent from
management and the majority are free from any business
or other relationship which could materially interfere with
the exercise of their independent judgement. On specific
issues where there may be a potential conflict of interest,
Members declare their interests and withdraw from the
meeting. This is noted in the minutes. 

The Chairman has ensured that the Board Members have
been provided with appropriate and timely information and
that their enquiries have been properly met.

The Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved
to it for decision and has also defined those delegated to
Board Committees and the Executive Directors. The Board
considers that the Non-Executive Members bring a
sufficient strength of independence to the Board and has
not nominated any one Non-Executive Member to be a
senior independent Board Member. The roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive are separated and clearly defined in
the delegation arrangements, which also provide for all
Board Members to have access to the advice and services
of the Secretary to the Board, and take independent
professional advice at BW’s expense after notifying the
Chairman. The Secretary ensures that new Board Members
receive appropriate training on appointment which includes
an information pack and an induction session for new Audit
Committee Members. The Secretary may only be removed
with the approval of the Board.

A subsidiary, British Waterways Pension Trustees Limited,
the trustee of the Pension Fund, is responsible for its
governance. The trustee directors, who meet twice yearly,
are four Members of the Board, the Chief Executive, three
employee representatives and a representative elected by
current pensioners. Fund management is overseen by an
Investment Sub-Committee and is delegated to external
professional investment managers. Responsibility for the
management and administration of the Fund is vested in a
Committee of Management. Ongoing day to day
supervision of the administration of the Fund is carried out
by the Pensions Manager and staff, under an
administration agreement between British Waterways
Pension Trustees Limited and BW.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Unlike a listed company, BW does not have shareholders
so that Sections 1C and 2 of the Combined Code do not
apply. The Board is responsible to the Secretary of State
for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and maintains
an ongoing dialogue at all levels within government. The
Board holds an Annual Meeting at which it communicates
the key business results and plan for the future to the main
user groups, its partners and individual users.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Board’s Audit Committee comprises five Non-
Executive Board Members. It has written terms of
reference and meets at least three times a year to review
the internal audit plan, progress against that plan, and
summary findings of the internal and external auditors. In
addition to reviewing the financial results and accounting
policies, the Committee monitors corporate governance
and the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems for the Board. The Chief Executive and the
Head of Audit attend the meetings when appropriate, as do
the Executive Directors and external auditors. The
Committee also meets the external auditors without
Executive Directors present. Details of the Members are
given on page 4.

BOARD MEMBERS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN 
RESPECT OF THE ACCOUNTS
The Board Members are required to prepare accounts for
each financial year which comply with the Accounts
Direction issued by the Secretary of State for the
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in respect of BW 
(see pages 66 and 67).
In preparing those accounts, Board Members are 
required to:
● select suitable accounting policies and then apply them

consistently
● make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent
● state whether applicable accounting standards have been

followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the accounts

● prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless
it is inappropriate to presume that the organisation will
continue in business.

The Board Members confirm that the accounts comply with
the above requirements.

Board Members are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept and that these disclose with
reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial position of
BW and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply
with the Direction.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
BW and hence for taking reasonable steps to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

GOING CONCERN
The funding arrangements of BW differ from those of a
public limited company. BW receives an annual grant from
government to assist it in meeting its statutory obligations,
as referred to in the Statutory and Financial Framework on
page 58. The grant available for the year ending 31 March
2003 has been notified as £78.7 million. It is anticipated
that grant will continue at levels sufficient to enable BW to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board Members acknowledge their ultimate
responsibility for BW’s system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness. These internal controls are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Control environment
There is a clear organisation structure with delegated
responsibilities and authorities. The Board is committed to
achieving high standards from its people. A code of
conduct and ethics statement is supported by high
recruitment standards, an appraisal process and a policy of
unlocking the potential of staff. The key control processes
are documented and available on-line throughout BW. 



AUDITORS’ REPORT 

We have audited the accounts which comprise the profit
and loss account, the balance sheet, the cash flow
statement, the statement of total recognised gains and
losses and the related notes (note 1 to note 21) which
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of certain fixed assets, and
the accounting policies set out in the statement of
accounting policies.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF 
BOARD MEMBERS AND AUDITORS
The Board Members’ responsibilities for preparing the
annual report and the accounts, in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards,
and for ensuring the regularity of financial transactions, are
set out in the statement of Board Members’
responsibilities. 

Independent auditors’ report to the Secretary of State for the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs.
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Performance monitoring
The Executive Directors submit a rolling three year
Business Plan, detailed annual budgets and key
performance indicators on its critical success factors to the
Board for approval. The plan describes the implementation
of the Boards long-term strategic vision and is supported
by the individual business unit plans which apply consistent
economic and financial assumptions. Monthly operational
reports and financial summaries together with regular
forecasts are produced for each business unit and
reviewed by the Executive. Progress against the key
performance indicators are supplied on a quarterly basis to
the Executive for review. Detailed reports and projections
are presented to each Board meeting. 

Risk identification and management
There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by BW. This process is
regularly reviewed by the Board. 

Risks are identified in each business unit plan and are
reviewed by the Executive Directors and the Board. The
key risks are subject to regular review by the Executive
Directors to identify new and changing risks. The results
are incorporated into the Chief Executive’s operating report
to the Board. The Board also considers specific reports on
key risks, including the statutory arrears and safety

backlog. Each Regional Director annually completes a letter
of assurance outlining how risk management and the
control environment has provided reasonable assurance of
effective and efficient operations throughout the period.
The Chief Executive considers this with each Regional
Director during the annual corporate governance review
and a statement is given to the Audit Committee
summarising the significant risks, controls and required
action points.

This is supplemented by ongoing risk assessments at each
business unit jointly by management and internal audit.

Monitoring
During the year the Audit Committee:
● reviews the internal and external audit plans
● considers reports from management, internal and external

audit on the system of risk management, internal control
and any significant control weaknesses

● discusses with management the actions and progress in
dealing with identified problem areas.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the outcome
of the Audit Committee meetings and any significant
internal control issues to the Board. The Board receives the
minutes of all Audit Committee meetings. 

Corporate Governance
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Auditors’ Report

Our responsibilities, as independent auditors, are
established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing
Practices Board and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the accounts
give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Transport Act 1962,
and any directions issued by the Secretary of State for the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. We
also report to you if, in our opinion, the Board Members’
report is not consistent with the accounts, if BW has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for our audit,
or if information specified by law, or the accounts direction
is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement
reflects BW’s compliance with the seven provisions of the
Combined Code for our review, and we report if it does not.
We are not required to consider whether the Board
Members’ statements on internal control cover all risks and
controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of
BW’s corporate governance procedures, or its risk and
control procedures. 

We read the other information contained in the annual
report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited accounts. We consider the implications for our
report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the accounts. The other
information comprises only the Board Members’ report, the
Chairman's statement, the operating and financial review,
and the corporate governance statement. 

The maintenance and integrity of the BW website is the
responsibility of the Board Members; the work carried out
by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to
the financial statements since they were initially presented
on the website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with United
Kingdom auditing standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts, disclosures and
regularity of financial transactions included in the accounts.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the Board Members in the
preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of BW,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to
give reasonable assurance that the accounts are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error, and in all material respects, the
expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them. In forming
our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the accounts.

OPINION
In our opinion:
● The accounts give a true and fair view of the state of

BW’s affairs as at 31 March 2002, and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended, and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Directions of
the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs.

● In all material respects, the expenditure and income have
been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and
the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
No 1 London Bridge
London
SE1 9QL

24 June 2002



66 BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS

ACCOUNTS DIRECTION

The Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs, in exercise of the powers conferred by section 24
of the Transport Act 1962 and of all other powers enabling
her in that respect, and with the consent of the Treasury
and in consultation with the Scottish Executive, hereby
makes the following direction.

1. The annual accounts, which it is the duty of the British
Waterways Board (hereinafter referred to as BW) to
prepare in respect of each accounting year until further
notice, shall comprise in respect of BW: 
(a) a board members’ report
(b) a profit and loss account
(c) a statement of total recognised gains and losses
(d) a balance sheet 
(e) a cash flow statement 

including in each case such notes as may be necessary for
the purposes referred to in paragraph 2 below.

2. The annual accounts referred to above shall give a true
and fair view of the profit or loss, state of affairs and
cash flows of BW. Subject to the foregoing
requirements, without limiting the information given, and
save as described in Schedule 1 to this direction, the
annual accounts shall also, where applicable, comply
with:
(a) the accounting and disclosure requirements of

companies legislation currently in force;
(b) the accounts disclosure requirements of paragraph

43 of chapter 12 of the Financial Services
Authority listing rules; 

(c) the best commercial accounting practice including
accounting standards adopted or issued by the
Accounting Standards Board; and

(d) any additional disclosure or accounting
requirements that the Treasury may issue from
time to time in respect of public corporations’
accounts. 

3. The balance sheet shall be prepared under the
historical cost convention modified by the revaluation of
investment properties.

4. Clarification of the application of the accounting and
disclosure requirements of the Companies Act and
accounting standards is given in Schedule 1 to this
Direction. The annual accounts shall include the
information set out in Schedule 2 to this direction.

5. The Direction shall be reproduced as an annex to the
annual accounts.

6. The Direction issued on 3 March 1999 is hereby
revoked.

Dated 20 May 2002

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State

J ROBERTS
A Senior Civil Servant in the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

SCHEDULE 1
In the balance sheet, loans from the Secretary of State
shall be grouped with capital and reserves. Interest on
these loans shall be separately disclosed in the profit and
loss account. When preparing its balance sheet, BW shall
have regard to the balance sheet format 1 prescribed in
Schedule 4 to the Companies Act 1985. Items A to J in
Format 1 shall be presented so as to show the total of
those items separately from the totals of item K (capital
and reserves). The disclosure exemptions permitted by the
Companies Act for small and medium size companies do
not apply unless approved by the Treasury.

SCHEDULE 2
(I) The board members’ report shall

(a) contain the information which the Companies Act
1985 requires to be disclosed in the directors’
report, where appropriate;

(b) state that the accounts have been prepared in a
form notified by the Secretary of State with the
consent of the Treasury in accordance with the
relevant statute and

(c) include a brief history and statutory background 
of BW.  

British Waterways Board Direction given by the Secretary of State
for the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in respect
of the annual accounts.
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(II) The annual accounts, or the notes thereto, shall
disclose: the turnover and other operating income,
operating costs, each analysed as follows:
(i) Multiple use waterways
(ii) Leisure waterways
(iii) Waterways not fully navigable

(III)The annual accounts shall also disclose details of:
(a) rents receivable for the year showing separately

rents from investment property and rents from
other property; 

(b) interests during the year in other transport
undertakings and other trade investments;

(c) government grant received during the year
reconciled to income from grant as shown in the
profit and loss account; 

(d) indebtedness to the Secretary of State (National
Loans Fund) at the year end including details of
maturity dates, interest rates and information
about the use of BW’s borrowing powers. 

(e) the Chairman’s and Board Members’ emoluments
for the year provided written consent has been
obtained to disclosure under the Data Protection
Act 1998 and if consent to disclosure is withheld
then a statement to that effect against the name
of the individual (this consent is not required
where a requirement to disclose is a condition in
the employment contract);

(f) staff costs for the year, excluding Non-Executive
Board Members, according to categories of staff; 

(g) a statement of the number of employees during
the year, excluding Board Members, whose
emoluments excluding pension contributions fell in
each bracket of a scale in multiples of £10,000,
starting at £50,000.

(h) a statement that the resource Departmental
Expenditure Limit (DEL), capital DEL and
resource annually managed expenditure budget
limits set by the Department have not been
exceeded.



ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Under Section 24(1)(b) of the Transport Act 1962, BW is
required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in
such form and containing such particulars as the Secretary
of State for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs may, with
the approval of H.M. Treasury, from time to time direct. A
copy of the Accounts Direction, at present in force, is set
out on pages 66 and 67.

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION
The accounts are prepared in accordance with the
historical cost convention modified by the revaluation of
investment properties and generally accepted accounting
principles in the United Kingdom, with the following
exception, required by the Accounts Direction:

In the balance sheet, National Loans Fund loans from
the Secretary of State are grouped with capital and
reserves, rather than as creditors falling due after more
than one year.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
(a) Operational Assets

Waterways, reservoirs and towing paths were written off
in the capital reconstruction on 1 January 1969
resulting from the Transport Act 1968.
Land, buildings, and structures capitalised are:
(i) Purchases of land and the construction and major

improvement of buildings.
(ii) Additional assets and improvements to existing

assets of BW, provided the financial return meets
the commercial viability criteria laid down by BW.

All other expenditure on improvements, repairs and renewals
is charged to the profit and loss account as it arises.
(b) Craft, plant and equipment

All expenditure on additions, improvements and
replacements is capitalised.

(c) Gross book value
The gross book value of fixed assets other than
investment properties is shown at the valuation at 1
January 1969 or at subsequent cost.

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any provision for permanent diminution in
value. Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets,
other than investment properties and freehold land, at rates
calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less estimated

residual value (if any), of each asset on a straight-line basis
over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold buildings 40 years
Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease
Plant, machinery and structures Between 5 and 25 years
Vehicles 5 years

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Investment properties are revalued annually. Surpluses or
deficits on individual properties are transferred to the
investment revaluation reserve, unless a deficit below
historical cost (or its reversal) is expected to be permanent,
in which case it is charged (or credited) to the profit and
loss account. Depreciation is not provided in respect of
freehold investment properties or of leasehold investment
properties where the unexpired term of the lease is more
than 20 years. The Board Members consider that this
departure from the statutory accounting rules is necessary
to provide a true and fair view and to comply with
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No.19.

DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BW accounts for disposals of investment properties upon
completion of sale. The proceeds in respect of properties
sold are used for the funding of capital expenditure of a
commercial nature, or such other expenditure as agreed by
the Secretary of State for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs.

DEFERRED CONSIDERATION
Where BW enters into a significant sale of assets or rights
with deferred consideration terms, the net present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted at the clearing bank
base rate ruling at the date of the transaction, is recognised
in the profit and loss account. Imputed interest is recognised
in the profit and loss account on a receivable basis.

DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANT
A proportion of the grant-in-aid received from government
is allocated by BW for the purchase of plant, equipment
and vehicles used for waterway operation and
maintenance. The grant concerned is treated as deferred
capital grant and released to the profit and loss account
over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned.

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been
applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year, is set
out below.
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LEASED FIXED ASSETS
All current leases are operating leases. Rentals under
operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over
the lease term, even if the payments are not made on such
a basis.

ACQUISITIONS AND GOODWILL
Acquisitions are accounted for under the acquisition method. 

Goodwill arising on acquisitions in the year ended 
31 March 1998 and earlier periods was written off to
reserves in accordance with the accounting standard then
in force. Negative goodwill was shown as an unrealised
capital reserve and is credited to realised capital reserves
in the periods expected to benefit. As permitted by the
current accounting standard the goodwill previously written
off to reserves has not been reinstated in the balance
sheet. On disposal or closure of a previously acquired
business, the attributable amount of goodwill previously
written off to reserves is included in determining the profit
or loss on disposal.

STOCKS
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

DIRECT INCOME
Direct income represents amounts receivable for goods
and services provided in the normal course of business, net
of trade discounts and VAT. Contributions to non-statutory
works are recognised on an accruals basis after all
conditions for their receipt have been met.

TAXATION
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing
differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result
in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay
less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet
date. Timing differences are differences between BW’s
taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial
statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses
in tax assessments in periods different from those in which
they are recognised in the financial statements.
A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and
therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all available
evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that
there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying timing differences can be
deducted.

Deferred tax is not recognised when fixed assets are
revalued unless by the balance sheet date there is a binding

agreement to sell the revalued assets and the gain or loss
expected to arise on sale has been recognised in the
financial statements. Neither is deferred tax recognised
when fixed assets are sold and it is more likely than not that
the taxable gain will be rolled over, being charged to tax only
if and when the replacement assets are sold.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are
expected to apply in the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a non-
discounted basis.

PENSIONS
BW operates a single funded defined benefit scheme for
all staff. Pension costs are charged to the profit and loss
account so as to spread the cost over the employees’
working lives with BW. The regular cost is attributed to
individual years using the projected unit method. Variations
in pension costs which are identified as a result of actuarial
valuations, are amortised over the average expected
remaining working lives of employees in proportion to their
expected payroll costs. Differences between the amounts
funded and the amounts charged to the profit and loss
account are treated as either a provision or prepayment in
the balance sheet. The assets of the pension fund are in a
separate trust to any BW assets.

BW has adopted the transitional arrangements for pension
cost disclosure detailed in FRS17 and has therefore
included the new disclosures within the notes to the
accounts.

Provisions for an unfunded pension entitlement for the
Chairman and to cover the present value of the future
costs of reduced cost travel benefits are included in the
balance sheet. These provisions for unfunded
arrangements have been calculated in accordance with
FRS17 based on the assumptions set out in note 7 to
these accounts.

FINANCE COSTS
Finance costs of debt are recognised in the profit and loss
account over the term of such loans at a constant rate on
the carrying amount.

SEGMENTAL DISCLOSURE
For the purpose of Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice No. 25, BW is, in the opinion of its Board
Members, engaged in one class of business.
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year to 31 March 2002

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
Year to 31 March 2002

NOTE 2001/02 2000/01
£000 £000

Direct income 1 110,979 128,954
Government grant 2 64,637 62,055
Total revenue 175,616 191,009 

Major repairs and renovations 1 (81,859) (99,471)
Staff costs 1 (52,079) (47,305)
Other operating charges 1 (49,426) (43,580)
Depreciation 1 (4,130) (3,782)
Own work capitalised or charged to major works 1 1,940 2,842
Total expenditure (185,554) (191,296)
Operating loss 3 (9,938) (287)

Profit on sale of investment properties 2,078 5,103 
Exceptional profit on sale of other property rights 21 45,882 -
Interest receivable 2,335 3,135
Interest payable 4 (3,807) (3,323)
Profit for the financial year before taxation 36,550 4,628 
Taxation on profits 5 (2,665) (73)
Profit for the financial year after taxation 33,885 4,555 
Transfer to realised capital reserve 16 (5,926) (5,030)
Profit/(loss) transferred to reserves 27,959 (475)

NOTE 2001/02 2000/01
£000 £000

Profit for the financial year after taxation 33,885 4,555 
Net increase/(decrease) in revaluation reserve resulting from transfers

between investment and operational properties 16 29 (55)
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties 16 15,723 18,295 
Corporation tax on capital gains 5 (3,215) 1,206 
Movement on deferred tax provision on revaluation surpluses 13 7,400 (1,300)
Total gains recognised since last Annual Report 53,822 22,701 

NOTE 2001/02 2000/01
£000 £000

Profit for the financial year after taxation 33,885 4,555 
Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years 16 14,647 4,710 
Corporation tax on capital gains 5 (3,215) 1,206 
Historical cost profit for the financial year 45,317 10,471 

NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST PROFITS AND LOSSES
Year to 31 March 2002
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 March 2002

NOTE 31 March 2002 31 March 2001

£000 £000 £000 £000

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 8 358,848 349,001

Investments 9 3,868 2,554

362,716 351,555

Current assets

Stocks 10 559 1,402

Debtors

Trade debtors 11,846 13,702

Other debtors 11 47,008 11,631

Prepayments and accrued income 15,057 19,062

73,911 44,395

Cash at bank and in hand 12 26,860 20,924

101,330 66,721 

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors 3,919 9,975 

Taxation and social security 201 1,324 

Other creditors 13,926 13,858 

Accruals 27,339 25,912 

Deferred income 12,804 15,540 

58,189 66,609 

Net current assets 43,141 112

Total assets less current liabilities 405,857 351,667 

Provisions for liabilities and charges 13 (30,338) (33,188)

Deferred capital grant 14 (10,469) (7,251)

365,050 311,228 

FINANCED BY

Reserves

Investment property revaluation reserve 16 206,150 197,645 

Realised capital reserve 16 113,095 95,737 

Unrealised capital reserve 16 4,100 4,100 

Capital contribution 16 1,850 1,450 

Profit and loss account 17 23,519 (4,440)

348,714 294,492 

Debt

Due to National Loans Fund 15 16,336 16,736 

365,050 311,228 
G. P. Greener D. J. Fletcher

Chairman Chief Executive

24 June 2002
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RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000 £000 £000

Operating loss (9,938) (287)

Items not involving the flow of cash:

Depreciation 4,130 3,782 

Profit on sale of operational fixed assets (110) (83)

Write down in value of fixed assets 938 200 

Release of deferred capital grant (782) (735)

4,176 3,164 

(5,762) 2,877 

Decrease/(increase) in stocks 843 (851)

Decrease/(increase) in debtors 13,032 (7,170)

(Decrease)/increase in creditors (10,446) 17,507 

3,429 9,486

(Decrease)/increase in provisions (2,403) 312 

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (4,736) 12,675 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT NOTE 2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000 £000 £000

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (4,736) 12,675 

Returns from servicing of finance
Interest received 1,333 3,249 

Interest paid (2,762) (2,357)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from servicing of finance (1,429) 892

Capital expenditure and financial investment

Payments to acquire fixed assets (18,451) (44,550)

Receipts from sale of fixed assets 11,910 13,738 

Receipts from sale of other property rights 15,956 -

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from capital expenditure and financial investment 9,415 (30,812)

Acquisitions
Purchase of associated undertakings 9 (1,166) (548)

Purchase of other investments 9 (148) - 

Net cash outflow from acquisitions (1,314) (548)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 1,936 (17,793)

Financing
Capital grant in respect of fixed assets 14 4,000 2,600 

Capital contribution from DEFRA 400 1,450 

Repayment of loans to National Loans Fund 15 (400) (1,450)

Net cash inflow from financing 4,000 2,600

Increase/(decrease) in cash 12 5,936 (15,193)

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET FUNDS (NOTE 12)

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000 £000 £000

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the period 5,936 (15,193)

Repayment of loans to National Loans Fund 400 1,450 

Change in net debt from cash flows during period 6,336 (13,743)

Net funds at 1 April 4,188 17,931

Net funds at 31 March 10,524 4,188 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year to 31 March 2002
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. ANALYSIS OF DIRECT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
NOT FULLY

MULTIPLE USE LEISURE USE NAVIGABLE 

WATERWAYS WATERWAYS WATERWAYS TOTAL

01/02 00/01 01/02 00/01 01/02 00/01 01/02 00/01

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income from property

Rents from investment properties 6,150 5,122 11,856 11,315 444 414 18,450 16,851

Other rents, wayleaves, licences 

and easements 2,655 2,071 7,317 6,989 386 532 10,358 9,592

8,805 7,193 19,173 18,304 830 946 28,808 26,443 

Income from leisure uses

Craft licences and moorings 2,143 1,764 11,221 10,452 36 35 13,400 12,251

Rents receivable 1,011 520 3,251 2,885 49 43 4,311 3,448 

Retail 70 47 1,412 940 - 1 1,482 988

Angling 75 82 574 604 35 46 684 732

3,299 2,413 16,458 14,881 120 125 19,877 17,419 

Income from commercial uses

Telecommunications 1,874 1,090 4,880 4,710 167 700 6,921 6,500

Water charges 1,651 2,495 2,213 2,046 274 394 4,138 4,935 

Tolls and dues 751 1,153 - 1 - - 751 1,154

4,276 4,738 7,093 6,757 441 1,094 11,810 12,589

Income from other uses

Contributions to non-statutory works 664 1,296 14,773 16,821 27,582 48,528 43,019 66,645

Other income 2,313 1,859 3,338 2,871 767 357 6,418 5,087

Maintenance agreements 99 79 735 482 213 210 1,047 771

3,076 3,234 18,846 20,174 28,562 49,095 50,484 72,503

Total direct income 19,456 17,578 61,570 60,116 29,953 51,260 110,979 128,954

Expenditure

Major repairs and renovations 7,408 6,490 39,151 37,624 35,300 55,357 81,859 99,471

Staff costs 12,149 10,688 31,294 29,294 8,636 7,323 52,079 47,305

Other operating charges 11,882 9,407 33,473 29,784 4,071 4,389 49,426 43,580

Depreciation 1,012 906 2,656 2,365 462 511 4,130 3,782 

Own work capitalised or charged 

to major works (671) (521) (765) (1,463) (504) (858) (1,940) (2,842)

Total expenditure 31,780 26,970 105,809 97,604 47,965 66,722 185,554 191,296

Waterway lengths (2001/02) 566 km 2,377 km 374 km 3,317 km

● The following waterways have been categorised as multiple use waterways:

Aire & Calder Navigation; Caledonian Canal; Crinan Canal; Gloucester & Sharpness Canal; New Junction Canal; Tees Navigation; River Ouse; 

River Trent; River Severn; South Yorkshire Navigation; Weaver Navigation.

● The following waterways have been categorised as not fully navigable waterways:

Cromford Canal; Grantham Canal; Huddersfield Narrow Canal (2000/1); Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal; Montgomery Canal; Pocklington Canal; 

Ribble Link; Rochdale Canal ; Scottish Lowland Canals; St. Helens Canal; Swansea Canal.

● All other waterways have been categorised as leisure waterways.

The categorisation of waterways used in this analysis does not affect British Waterways’ obligations set out in the 1968 Transport Act.

The majority of income and expenditure, including major repairs and renovations, can be directly attributed to waterway categories. Remaining 

income and expenditure is apportioned between waterway categories in the above analysis.
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2. GRANTS RECEIVABLE FROM CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

Grant receivable from DEFRA

Grant received in year 61,455 64,920 

Accrued grant at 1 April (2,200) (3,200)

Accrued grant at 31 March - 2,200 

59,255 63,920 

Allocated to deferred capital grant (4,000) (2,600)

Deferred capital grant released to profit and loss account 782 735 

56,037 62,055 

Grant receivable from Scottish Executive

Grant received in year 8,600 - 

Total revenue grant accrued during the year 64,637 62,055 
NOTES: Grant received on 1 April, for expenditure incurred but not paid before 31 March, is accrued in these accounts.

3. OPERATING PROFIT

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

This is stated after charging:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 4,130 3,782 

Profit on sale of operational fixed assets (110) (83)

Rents on leased properties 915 629 

Auditors’ remuneration – audit services 98 105 

– non audit services 19 2 

Board Members’ emoluments (Note 6) 153 144 

Inland Waterways Amenity Advisory Council expenses 147 139 

4. INTEREST PAYABLE

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

Interest payable on sums wholly repayable within five years:

Interest on loans from DEFRA under Section 19

of the Transport Act 1962 909 908 

Interest credited to provisions 1,073 1,074 

Other short-term interest 815 239 

2,797 2,221 

Interest payable on all other loans:

Interest on loans from DEFRA under Section 19

of the Transport Act 1962 1,010 1,102 

Total interest payable 3,807 3,323 

Notes to the accounts
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5. TAXATION

A provision of £4.3 million (2001: £0.9 million) has been held for current and previous year corporation tax liabilities 

which have arisen on trading account and capital gains. The movement in the provision during the year was as follows: 

£000 £000

Provision at 1 April 2001 921

Corporation tax for prior years repaid 8

Corporation tax for 2001/2 paid on account (2,552)

Charged to profit and loss account:

– Provision required for capital gains in the current year 2,815

– Adjustments in respect of prior years (150)

2,665 

Charged/(credited) to reserves:

– Provision required for capital gains in the current year 4,274

– Adjustments in respect of prior years (1,059)

3,215

Movement on provision during the year

Provision at 31 March 2002 4,257 

The provision charged to the profit and loss account for the current year is lower than the standard rate 

of corporation tax in the UK (30%). The differences are explained below:

£000 £000

Profit for the financial year before taxation 36,550

Corporation tax at 30% 10,965 

Effects of:

– Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,798 

– Tax allowances on Tees Barrage (393)

– Timing differences not recognised 77 

– Tax basis and indexation on asset disposal (9,632)

– Adjustments in respect of prior years (150)

Movement on provision during the year (8,300)

Provision for current year 2,665
NOTES: It is anticipated that the planned re-investment of the remaining proceeds from the sale of property rights in London Docklands will 

generate losses in the next financial year that may be carried back to reduce the provision required for capital gains. Trading tax losses carried 

forward at 31 March 2002 amounted to £5.9 million (2001: £5.2 million).
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6. BOARD MEMBERS’ EMOLUMENTS BASIC REMUNERATION

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

Name of Board Member

George Greener, Chairman 65 63 

Sir Peter Soulsby, Vice Chairman 13 13 

Campbell Christie 10 10 

Ian Darling 10 6 

Helen Gordon 10 6 

Derek Langslow 10 6 

Susan Achmatowicz (appointed October 2001) 5 - 

George Fleming (appointed October 2001) 5 -  

Janet Lewis-Jones (retired March 2001 and re-appointed October 2001) 5 10 

Adeeba Malik (appointed October 2001) 5 -

Terry Tricker (appointed October 2001) 5 -   

Carolan Dobson (retired September 2001) 5 10 

Paul King (retired September 2001) 5 10 

Sir Neil Cossons (retired March 2001) - 10 

153 144 
NOTES: The Board Members’ appointment and remuneration is determined by the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs. 

No Board Member receives a benefit-in-kind.

The Chairman's pension entitlement is calculated by analogy to the British Waterways (1990) Pension Fund. The increase in the provision 

required for the year is calculated by a qualified actuary using the discount rates consistent with those required under FRS17 as shown in note 7

to these accounts.

The Chairman, George Greener, had accrued entitlements under this defined benefit arrangement as follows:

£p.a.

Accrued pension at 1 April 2001 1,758 

Indexation on accrued pension at 1 April 2001 30 

Accrued pension during the year 1,083 

Accrued pension at 31 March 2002 2,871 
NOTES: Transfer value of increase after indexation is £16,200. The Chairman contributed £3,647 to the scheme during the year.

There were no contracts or transactions in which the Board Members had a disclosable interest.

Notes to the accounts



BRITISH WATERWAYS ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 77

7. STAFF COSTS

a  The average number of persons (excluding Board Members) employed during the year was:

2001/02 2000/01

Number Number

Total regions 1,689 1,581 

Engineering and technical department 172 164 

Commercial department 58 53 

Other central departments 144 131 

Total employees 2,063 1,929 

b  Total employment costs (excluding Board Members' emoluments stated in Note 6 to these Accounts) were:

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

Gross wages and salaries 43,283 39,110 

Employer’s national insurance contributions 3,334 3,229 

Employer's pension cost 5,462 4,966 

Total employment costs 52,079 47,305 

c  Analysis of total employment costs by department: 

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

Total regions 40,231 36,562 

Engineering department 4,531 4,210 

Commercial department 1,819 1,702 

Other central departments 5,498 4,831 

Total employment costs 52,079 47,305 

d  Senior employee emoluments
The number of senior employees whose emoluments, including the taxable value of benefits-in-kind, but excluding employer's pension contributions 

and payments on leaving service, were within the following ranges:

2001/02 2000/01

£ Number Number

50,000 – 60,000 17 11 

60,001 – 70,000 6 5 

70,001 – 80,000 1 4 

80,001 – 90,000 6 4 

90,001 – 100,000 2 2 

100,001 – 110,000 2 2 

110,001 – 120,000 - 1 

120,001 – 130,000 2 - 

150,001 – 160,000 - 1 

170,001 – 180,000 1 -
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7. STAFF COSTS continued

e  Pension Scheme
BW operates a single funded defined benefit pension scheme for all staff. Contributions to the scheme are determined with the advice of 

independent professionally qualified actuaries on the basis of a triennial valuation using the projected unit method. The most recent valuation was 

conducted as at 31 March 2001 using the following main financial assumptions:

Rate of return on existing assets 5.0%

Rate of return on future contributions 6.25%

Rate of salary and wage increases 4.0%

Rate of pension increases 2.5%

The market value of the scheme’s assets (excluding members’ additional voluntary contributions) at 31 March 2001 amounted to £200.5 million  

and the value placed upon the benefits that had accrued to members, after allowing for the effect of future increases in their earnings, was 

£203.4 million.

The scheme was therefore 99% funded on an ongoing basis. On the solvency basis prescribed by the statutory Minimum Funding Requirement, the 

scheme’s assets were 115% of accrued liabilities. The employer contribution rate was reviewed by the scheme actuary as part of the valuation, and 

the recommended rate remained stable at 16% of pensionable pay. This included an allowance of 0.8% towards administrative expenses, 1% 

towards the cost of extra benefits under the voluntary early retirement arrangements, and 1.1% to raise the ongoing funding level to 100% within 

six years if the adopted assumptions were borne out in practice.

FRS17 Retirement benefits

BW has adopted the transitional arrangements for pension cost disclosure detailed in FRS17 and has therefore included following new disclosures:

The following fair values at 31March 2002 were measured in accordance with the requirements of FRS 17. The present value of the scheme 

liabilities was calculated using the following assumptions:

Rate of inflation 2.5%

Rate of increase in salaries 4.0%

Rate of increase for pensions in payment and deferred pensions 2.5%

Rate used to discount scheme liabilities 6.0%

AMOUNTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2002 EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN FOR THE

£ MILLION YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2002

Equities 152.4 6.1%

Bonds 29.2 5.3%

Cash 11.8 4.0%

Total 193.4

£ MILLION

Total fair value of assets 193.4

Present value of scheme liabilities 188.0

Surplus in the Scheme before deferred tax 5.4

Deferred tax liability 1.6

Surplus in the Scheme – Net pension asset 3.8
NOTE: The above valuation has been updated to 31 March 2002 by an independent qualified actuary.

If the above amounts had been recognised in the financial statements, BW’s net assets and Profit and Loss account reserve at 

31 March 2002 would be as follows:

£ MILLION

Net assets excluding pension asset 405.9

Pension asset 3.8

Net assets including pension assets 409.7

£ MILLION

Profit and Loss account reserve excluding pension asset 23.5

Pension reserve 3.8

Profit and Loss account reserve 27.3
Provisions in respect of unfunded pension arrangements (see notes 6 and 13) have been calculated using the discount rates shown above and 

therefore are consistent with FRS17.

Notes to the accounts
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8. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
FREEHOLD LAND LEASEHOLD CRAFT, PLANT AND

BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES LAND AND BUILDINGS EQUIPMENT

Operational Investment Operational Investment Owned Leased TOTAL

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation

At 1 April 2001 52,638 290,839 1,003 2,319 38,944 1,002 386,745 

Transfers (1,778) 1,635 169 (1,600) 1,565 -   (9)

Additions 5,152 5,834 204 283 9,032 -   20,505 

Reduction in value -   (938) -   -   -   -   (938)

Disposals (3) (21,224) -   -   (1,417) -   (22,644)

Revaluation -   15,734 -   18 -   -   15,752 

At 31 March 2002 56,009 291,880 1,376 1,020 48,124 1,002 399,411 

Depreciation

At 1 April 2001 13,733 -   95 -   22,914 1,002 37,744 

Transfers (106) -   -   -   97 -   (9)

Provision for year 1,066 -   16 -   3,048 -   4,130 

Disposals (3) -   -   -   (1,299) -   (1,302)

At 31 March 2002 14,690 -   111 -   24,760 1,002 40,563 

Net book value

At 31 March 2002 41,319 291,880 1,265 1,020 23,364 -   358,848 

At 31 March 2001 38,905 290,839 908 2,319 16,030 -   349,001

NOTE: The value of operational fixed assets includes assets in the course of construction valued at £8.3 million (2001: £4.6 million).

The surplus on revaluation at 31 March comprises: 2001/02 2000/01
£000 £000

Increase/(reduction) in net revaluation from transfers between investment and operational properties 29 (55)

Surplus on revaluation of investment properties 15,723 18,295 

15,752 18,240 

The net book value of investment properties at 31 March comprises: 2001/02 2000/01
£000 £000

Cost 86,750 88,113 

Revaluation surpluses 206,150 205,045 

292,900 293,158 
NOTE: In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No. 19, depreciation is not provided on investment properties. 

This is a departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 1985. In the opinion of the Board Members, this departure is required in order to

show a true and fair view in these accounts.

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2001 on an open market value basis by Gerald Eve, Chartered Surveyors.  

Based upon these valuations, British Waterways has incorporated a value of investment properties of £293 million in these accounts.

The value of investment properties includes properties valued at £13.9 million (2001: £24 million) that are held for disposal.

In the event that the investment properties were to be sold for their revalued amount, tax on such disposals would be approximately £57 million 

(2000/1: £54 million). A provision of £7.4 million for the potential tax liability on the disposal of investment properties was included in the accounts 

at 31 March 2001 on the basis of the gains expected to arise from BW’s planned programme of disposals over the next 4 years. However, under 

FRS19 it is not permitted to recognise deferred tax on revalued assets unless by the balance sheet date there is a binding agreement to sell the 

revalued assets and the gain or loss expected to arise on sale has been recognised in the financial statements. Accordingly, this provision has been 

released back to the Investment Property Revaluation Reserve (note 13).
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9. INVESTMENTS

2001/02 2000/01

a Subsidiary undertakings £000 £000

Shares at cost at 31 March 10 10 
NOTE: British Waterways Pension Trustees Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of BW registered in England and Wales 

which acts as trustee to the British Waterways 1990 Pension Fund. The book value of BW’s interest is represented by a debt of 

equal amount due to the subsidiary and both have been eliminated from BW’s accounts.

Limehouse Developments Ltd is registered in England and Wales but does not trade. BW currently has a loan of £85,000 from Limehouse 

Developments Ltd, repayable on demand. Wood Wharf Management Company Ltd manages property in London Docklands.

Consolidated accounts are not presented due to the insignificant amounts involved in the subsidiaries. There have been no transactions with 

subsidiaries during the year.

2001/02 2000/01

b Associated undertakings £000 £000

Ordinary shares at cost:

Total at 1 April 1,205 1,057 

Additions 1 148 

Disposals (148) -   

Balance at 31 March 1,058 1,205 

Loans:

Total at 1 April 1,339 939 

Additions 1,313 400 

Balance at 31 March 2,652 1,339 

Net book amount at 31 March 3,710 2,544 

ISSUED EQUITY

SHARED CAPITAL INTEREST HELD

£ %

Leeds Canal Basin (Developments) Ltd 1,021,684 49

Inland Waterway Carriers Ltd 10,000 49

Nottingham Waterside Ltd 1,000 49

Waterwise UK Ltd 1,000 49

West India Quay Management Company Ltd 1,000 12

Drifters Leisure Ltd 192 5

City Road Basin Ltd 100 49

Edinburgh Quay Ltd 100 49

Gloucester Dock Management Company Ltd 100 26

Granary Wharf Ltd 100 49

New Waterside Developments (Scotland) Ltd 100 49

Euro-waterways Ltd 90 49
NOTE: All the above companies are unlisted and are registered and operate in the United Kingdom. Leeds Canal Basin (Developments) Ltd and 

Granary Wharf Ltd are engaged in the development of canalside sites in Leeds. Euro-waterways Ltd operates a waterways consultancy. 

The principal activity of Nottingham Waterside Ltd, City Road Basin Ltd, and Edinburgh Quay Ltd is property development. Drifters Leisure Ltd’s 

principal activity is marketing canal boat holidays. West India Quay Management Company Ltd will manage a development in London Docklands but 

has not commenced trading. Waterwise UK Ltd manages a water safety training centre based at the Tees Barrage, Cleveland, and has recently 

commenced trading. Inland Waterway Carriers Ltd and Gloucester Dock Management Company Ltd and New Waterside Developments (Scotland) 

Limited are dormant companies. 

BW’s investment in these undertakings is shown in the balance sheet at cost less provisions for impairment.

Notes to the accounts
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9. INVESTMENTS continued

The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the profit and loss for the year of each associated undertaking, based on 

accounts made up to the dates indicated, was as follows:
CAPITAL & PROFIT/(LOSS)

RESERVES FOR THE YEAR

£000 £000

Leeds Canal Basin (Developments) Ltd (31 March 2002) (1,142) (254)

Inland Waterway Carriers Ltd (Dormant) 6 -   

Nottingham Waterside Ltd (31 December 2001) 13 12 

West India Quay Management Company Ltd (30 June 2001) 2 1

Drifters Leisure Ltd (31 October 2001) -   (1)

City Road Basin Ltd (31 December 2001) (82) (82)

Edinburgh Quay Ltd (31 December 2001) (587) (348)

Granary Wharf Ltd (31 March 2002) 39 39

Euro-waterways Ltd (30 April 2001) 7 (1)

2001/02 2000/01

c Other investments £000 £000

Shares at cost:

Total at 1 April - -   

Additions 148 -   

Balance at 31 March 148 -   
NOTE: During the year Ipsaris, an associate company in which BW owned a 10% equity interest, undertook a reorganisation. As a result BW acquired

an investment of £147,500 in Easynet Group plc. Easynet Group plc and subsidiaries provide Internet access, computer networking hardware, 

software, peripherals and consultancy services to customers in the UK and Europe.

10. STOCKS
31 MARCH 2002 31 MARCH 2001

£000 £000

Raw materials and consumables 178 170 

Held for resale 381 1,232 

559 1,402 

11. OTHER DEBTORS
Analysis of other debtors 31 MARCH 2002 31 MARCH 2001

£000 £000

Deferred consideration sale agreements 42,648 1,102

Grant-in-aid - 2,200

Value added tax 1,210 4,528

Others 3,150 3,801

47,008 11,631 
NOTE: Of the deferred consideration sale agreements £10,057,000 (2000/01: £611,000) will fall due after more than one year. Of the others, 

£115,000 (2000/01: £115,000) will fall due after more than one year.

12. ANALYSIS OF NET FUNDS
1 APRIL CASH OTHER 31 MARCH

2001 FLOWS CHANGES 2002

£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 20,924 5,936 -   26,860 

Capital debt (Note 15)

– due within one year (400) 400 (1,600) (1,600)

– due after one year (16,336) - 1,600 (14,736)

Totals 4,188 6,336 -   10,524 
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13. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

31 March 2002 31 Match 2001

£000 £000

Maintenance of Tees navigation 17,886 17,700 

Corporation tax 4,257 921 

Deferred taxation - 7,400 

Chairman’s pension costs 38 22 

Other post retirement benefits 441 573 

Other provisions 7,716 6,572 

30,338 33,188 

MAINTENANCE OF TEES NAVIGATION

The provision for maintenance on Tees navigation arises from obligations to maintain the River Tees navigation and Tees Barrage 

which was acquired from the Commission for the New Towns in the year ended 31 March 2000. Movements during the year 

were as follows:

£000

Balance at 1 April 2001 17,700 

Interest credited 1,062 

18,762 

Reduction due to re-assessment of outstanding liability (199)

Payments (677)

Balance at 31 March 2002 17,886 

CORPORATION TAX

A provision has been made for current and previous year corporation tax liabilities on trading profits and capital gains. Additional 

disclosure is made in note 5 to these accounts. Movements during the year were as follows:

£000

Balance at 1 April 2001 921 

Increase during the year 5,880 

6,801 

Payments (2,544)

Balance at 31 March 2002 4,257

DEFERRED TAXATION

A provision of £7,400,000 for the potential tax liability on the disposal of investment properties was included in the accounts at 

31 March 2001 on the basis of the gains expected to arise from BW’s planned programme of disposals over the next four years. 

However, under FRS19 it is not permitted to recognise deferred tax on revalued assets unless by the balance sheet date there is a 

binding agreement to sell the revalued assets and the gain or loss expected to arise on sale has been recognised in the financial 

statements. Accordingly, this provision has been released back to the Investment Property Revaluation Reserve.

The potential deferred tax asset (see table below) arising from losses in excess of the amount that can be offset from deferred tax 

liabilities in respect of accelerated capital allowances and short term timing differences is not provided for as BW cannot reasonably 

foresee when they will be utilised. Neither is deferred tax recognised on fixed assets which have been sold and it is more likely than 

not that the taxable gain will be rolled over, being charged to tax only if and when the replacement assets are sold. 

PROVIDED NOT PROVIDED

2001/02 2000/01 2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000 £000 £000

Accelerated Capital Allowances 1,048 699

Short Term Timing Differences (236) 188

Losses (812) (887) (838) (763)

Potential deferred tax 0 0 (838) (763)

Rolled over gains 8740 8740

Notes to the accounts
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13. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES continued

CHAIRMAN'S PENSION COSTS

An unfunded pension entitlement has been arranged for the Chairman. A provision is included in the balance sheet to cover this 

liability and has been calculated using discount rates consistent with those required under FRS17 as shown in note 7 to these 

accounts. Movements during the year were as follows:

£000

Balance at 1 April 2001 22 

Increase required during the year (see note 6) 16 

Balance at 31 March 2002 38

OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Under the terms of the 1962 Transport Act, employees transferring from the British Transport Commission to successor bodies were 

entitled to retain their reduced cost travel benefits. Successor bodies, including BW, were made responsible for procuring the benefits 

on their behalf.

Currently 13 BW employees and 360 pensioners retain entitlement to this benefit. A provision to cover the present value of the 

future cost of these benefits is included in the balance sheet.

The provision was re-assessed at 31 March 2002 by independent qualified actuaries using discount rates consistent with those 

required under FRS17 as shown in note 7 to these accounts. Movements during the year were as follows:

£000

Balance at 1 April 2001 573 

Interest credited 11 

584 

Effect of re-assessment (105)

Benefits paid (38)

Balance at 31 March 2002 441 

OTHER PROVISIONS

The other provisions relate principally to third party claims and a provision arising from leasehold properties previously occupied 

by BW. The movements during the year were as follows:

£000

Balance at 1 April 2001 6,572 

Increase during the year 2,274 

8,846 

Payments (1,130)

Balance at 31 March 2002 7,716 

14. DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANT

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 7,251 5,386 

Grant allocated to capital 4,000 2,600 

11,251 7,986 

Released to profit and loss account (782) (735)

Balance at 31 March 10,469 7,251 
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15. AMOUNTS DUE TO NATIONAL LOANS FUND

31 MARCH 2002 31 MARCH 2001

£000 £000

Loans are repayable as follows:

In one year or less 1,600 400 

Between one and two years - 1,600 

Between two and five years 4,824 4,184

In greater than five years 9,912 10,552

Total 16,336 16,736

Details of individual loans:

MATURITY DATE RATE OF AMOUNT MATURITY DATE RATE OF AMOUNT MATURITY DATE RATE OF AMOUNT

INTEREST % £000 INTEREST % £000 INTEREST % £000

2 Oct 2002 14 1/4 600 2 Apr 2007 15 1/8 384 2 Apr 2012 10 1/4 640
2 Oct 2002 11 1/2 1,000 2 Apr 2007 13 3/4 1,344 2 Apr 2012 9 448
2 Oct 2004 15 1/4 600 2 Oct 2007 13 5/8 320 2 Oct 2012 9 1/2 714
2 Apr 2005 14 640 2 Apr 2008 12 1/8 256 2 Apr 2020 8 5/8 1,000
2 Apr 2005 14 5/8 704 2 Apr 2008 11 768 2 Apr 2021 8 1/2 1,000
2 Apr 2005 14 1/8 640 2 Apr 2009 10 1/4 896 2 Apr 2022 7 3/4 250
2 Oct 2005 13 3/8 960 2 Apr 2010 11 1/8 576 2 Apr 2023 5 7/8 250
2 Oct 2005 13 1/2 640 2 Apr 2010 10 7/8 128 2 Apr 2024 5 650
2 Apr 2006 14 1/4 640 2 Apr 2011 9 1/4 288

NOTE: The government has decided to make capital contributions to BW to enable BW to repay those loans maturing before 2013 (£13.2 million) 

as they mature, thus removing from BW the need to take out new loans to repay them.

Borrowing authorised by DEFRA 31 MARCH 2002 31 MARCH 2001

£000 £000

Amount of debt due to National Loans Fund 16,336 18,186

Bank overdraft facility 3,000 3,000

Borrowing authorised by DEFRA 19,336 21,186

The bank overdraft facility is guaranteed by H.M. Treasury annually.

Analysis of changes in financing during the year 2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

Capital debt

At 1 April 16,736 18,186

Loans repaid (400) (1,450)

At 31 March 16,336 16,736

Notes to the accounts
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16. RESERVES

INVESTMENT 
PROPERTY UNREALISED

REALISED REVALUATION CAPITAL CAPITAL 
CAPITAL RESERVE RESERVE RESERVE CONTRIBUTION

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2001 95,737 197,645 4,100 1,450 

Net increase resulting from transfers between investment and 

operational properties -   29 -   -   

Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years 14,647 (14,647) -   -   

Corporation tax on capital gains of previous years (3,215) -   -   -   

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties -   15,723 -   -   

Transfer of profit on sale of investment properties from profit and loss account 2,078 -   -   -   

Transfer of profit on sale of other property rights from profit and loss account 6,513 

Corporation tax on capital gains in current year (2,665)

Reduction in provision for deferred taxation on property revaluation gains -   7,400 -   -   

Capital contribution from DEFRA -   -   -   400 

Balance at 31 March 2002 113,095 206,150 4,100 1,850 
NOTE: The realised capital reserve includes the value of profits on valuation arising from the sale of property and other property rights and the 

realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years, net of corporation tax. The investment property revaluation reserve includes unrealised 

gains on property valuation. The unrealised capital reserve includes the value of the excess of the fair value of assets acquired on acquisition of a 

business over the fair value of the consideration received. Capital contributions are from DEFRA to enable BW to repay National Loans Fund loans 

maturing before 2013 as they mature (see note 15).

17. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

2001/02 2000/01

£000 £000

Adverse balance at 1 April (4,440) (3,965)

Profit/(loss) transferred to reserves 27,959 (475)

Adverse balance at 31 March 23,519 (4,440)

19. OPERATING LEASES

31 MARCH 2001 31 MARCH 2000

£000 £000

Payments due to be made under operating leases during the following year:

(i) Land and buildings leases expiring:

Within one year 65 122 

Within two to five years 94 77 

In greater than five years 769 635 

Total 928 834 

(ii) Other operating leases expiring:

Within one year 248 247 

Within two to five years 1,605 1,204 

In greater than five years 1 9 

Total 1,854 1,460 

18. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure for which BW had contracted at 31 March 2002 was £3,747,000 (2001: £3,999,000).
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, BW entered into a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business and on an 

arm’s-length basis. The names of these parties, the nature of these transactions and their total value is shown below.
AMOUNT

AMOUNT RECEIVABLE/ OUTSTANDING AT 
(PAYABLE) DURING THE YEAR 31 MARCH 2002

£000 £000

Transactions with the Environment Agency which is under the control of BW’s 

sponsoring government department, DEFRA.

– Contribution to works and the Boat Safety Scheme 936 384 

Transactions with the East of Scotland Water Authority which is under the control 

of BW’s sponsoring government department in Scotland, the Scottish Executive.

– Contribution to works (59) - 

Transactions with the Waterways Trust, a registered charity of which 

Sir Peter Soulsby (Board Member), Dave Fletcher (Chief Executive), Simon Salem (Director) 

and Chris Mitchell (Regional Director, Southern) are trustees.

– Fees paid for fundraising, archiving and support services (1,380) (145)

– Contribution to restoration works 18,356 4,721 

Transactions with the Millennium Link Trust, a charitable company limited by guarantee 

of which Jim Stirling (Regional Director, Scotland) and Ken Aylmer (Chief Accountant) are directors.

– Rent receivable 75 63 

– Rent payable (75) (63)

Transactions with the Heritage Lottery Fund, a non-departmental public body of which 

Derek Langslow (Board Member) was appointed as a trustee in February 2002.

– Contribution to restoration works 2,009 223 

Transactions with Easynet Group plc in which Dave Fletcher (Chief Executive) is a Director. 

BW also own a 3% shareholding in this company.

– contract for fibre optics along the towpath 6,500 - 

Transactions with Ultramast Ltd in which Robin Evans (Commercial Director) is a Director. 

– contract for provision of mobile phone masts 407 - 

Loans to associate and subsidiary companies (see note 9) are as follows:

1 APRIL MOVEMENTS 31 MARCH

2001 2002

£000 £000 £000

Edinburgh Quay Ltd 1,339 -   1,339 

City Road Basin Ltd -   1,313 1,313 

Total 1,339 1,313 2,652  

21. EXCEPTIONAL PROFIT ON SALE OF OTHER PROPERTY RIGHTS

In February 2002 BW and Canary Wharf Group plc entered into an agreement removing a restrictive covenant affecting the  

remaining development sites within Canary Wharf and various operational matters relating to the dock areas. This covenant had 

been passed to BW, by the London Docklands Development Corporation, as part of the transfer of assets and liabilities in 1997/98. 

BW will receive £45.9m net of costs as cash consideration. The first tranche of the cash was received in 2001/02 with the 

remainder due in 2002/03. 

Notes to the accounts
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARIES

2001/02 2000/01 1999/00 1998/99 1997/98

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Direct income from:
Property 28,808 26,443 21,459 22,293 19,630 

Leisure uses 19,877 17,419 15,044 13,093 11,804 

Commercial uses 11,810 12,589 6,625 3,794 4,272 

Contributions to non-statutory works 43,019 66,645 51,524 19,795 11,572 

Other income 6,418 5,087 3,287 2,506 2,156 

Maintenance agreements 1,047 771 750 1,020 922 

Direct income 110,979 128,954 98,689 62,501 50,356 

Government grant 64,637 62,055 58,673 53,684 52,082 

Total revenue 175,616 191,009 157,362 116,185 102,438 

Operating (loss) / profit (9,938) (287) 849 (1,562) 1,679 
Profit on sale of investment properties 2,078 5,103 2,673 2,568 4,222 

Profit on sale of other property rights 45,882 -   -   -   -   

Income from associated undertakings -   -   170 -   -   

Interest payable net of receivable (1,472) (188) (563) (1,265) (1,587)

Profit/(loss) for the financial year before taxation 36,550 4,628 3,129 (259) 4,314 

Taxation on profits (2,665) (73) (277) (731) -   

Profit/(loss) for the financial year after taxation 33,885 4,555 2,852 (990) 4,314 

Transfers to realised capital reserve (5,926) (5,030) (2,396) (1,837) (4,222)

Revenue profit/(loss) retained 27,959 (475) 456 (2,827) 92 

2001/02 2000/01 1999/00 1998/99 1997/98

BALANCE SHEET £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Assets Employed
Fixed assets 362,716 351,555 298,089 271,890 252,485 

Current assets 101,330 66,721 77,086 42,293 28,098 

Creditors – amounts falling due within one year 58,189 66,609 49,627 32,350 24,949 

Net current assets 43,141 112 27,459 9,943 3,149

Total assets less current liabilities 405,857 351,667 325,548 281,833 255,634

Provisions for liabilities and charges (30,338) (33,188) (31,635) (12,478) (12,908)

Deferred capital grant (10,469) (7,251) (5,386) (5,029) (5,291)

365,050 311,228 288,527 264,326 237,435 

FINANCED BY

Reserves 348,714 294,492 270,341 246,140 219,249 

Debt 16,336 16,736 18,186 18,186 18,186 

365,050 311,228 288,527 264,326 237,435 

NOTE: Investment properties

Net book value of investment properties (£000) 292,900 293,158 247,703 230,956 209,828 

Annual revaluation of investment properties (£000) 15,752 18,239 23,372 26,050 22,993 

Rental yield per accounts 6.3% 6.8% 6.9% 7.0% 8.0% 



REGIONAL & SCOTLAND DIRECTORS

Derek Cochrane, Regional Director, 
North West
Address: Navigation Road, Northwich,
Cheshire, CW8 1BH. Tel: 01606 723800
Waterways: Ashton Canal, Caldon Canal,
Huddersfield Narrow Canal, Lancaster Canal,
Leeds & Liverpool Canal, Llangollen Canal,
Macclesfield Canal, Manchester Bolton &
Bury Canal, Montgomery Canal, Peak Forest
Canal, Ribble Link, Rochdale Canal,
Shropshire Union Canal (Audlem to Ellesmere
Port, including Middlewich Branch), Trent &
Mersey Canal (Preston Brook to Trentham)
and Weaver Canal.
Local offices: Burnley, Adlington, Apperley
Bridge, Chester, Lancaster, Manchester and
Red Bull. 

Jim Stirling, Director,
Scotland
Address: Canal House, Applecross Street,
Glasgow, G4 9SP. Tel: 0141 332 6936
Waterways: Caledonian Canal, Crinan Canal,
Forth & Clyde Canal, Monkland Canal and
Union Canal.
Local offices: Ardrishaig, Falkirk and
Inverness.

Chris Mitchell, Regional Director,
Southern
Address: Brindley Suite, Willow Grange,
Church Road, Watford, WD17 4QA. 
Tel: 01923 208700
Waterways: Grand Union Canal (Napton
Junction to Cowley and Norton Junction to
Foxton, including Welford, Aylesbury,
Northampton and Wendover Arms), Kennet &
Avon Canal, Oxford Canal and River Avon
(Bath to Hanham).
Local offices: Braunston, Devizes and
Marsworth.

Mark Bensted, Regional Director, 
London
Address: The Toll House, Delamere 
Terrace, Little Venice, London, W2 6ND. 
Tel: 020 7286 6101
Waterways: Bow Back Rivers, London
Docklands, Grand Union Canal (Brentford to
Cowley, including Paddington & Slough Arms),
Hertford Union Canal, Lee & Stort
Navigations, Limehouse Cut and Regent’s
Canal.
Local offices: Enfield, Norwood and
Docklands.

John Lancaster, Regional Director,
Midlands & South West
Address: Peels Wharf, Lichfield Street,
Fazeley, Tamworth, Staffs, B78 3QZ.
Tel: 01827 252000
Waterways: Ashby Canal, Birmingham &
Fazeley Canal, Birmingham Canal Navigation,
Bridgwater & Taunton Canal, Coventry Canal,
Gloucester Docks, Gloucester & Sharpness
Canal, Grand Union Canal (Salford Junction to
Napton Junction), Monmouthshire & Brecon
Canal, River Severn, Shropshire Union Canal
(Audlem to Autherley Junction), Staffordshire
& Worcester Canal, Stourbridge Canal,
Stratford Upon Avon Canal, Trent & Mersey
Canal (Trentham to Derwent Mouth) and
Worcester & Birmingham Canal.
Local offices: Fradley, Gloucester, Govilon,
Lapworth, Norbury and Tipton. 

Ian White, Regional Director,
North East
Address: Fearns Wharf, Neptune Street,
Leeds, LS9 8PB. Tel: 0113 281 6800
Waterways: Aire & Calder Navigation, Calder
& Hebble Canal, Chesterfield Canal, Erewash
Canal, Fossdyke and Witham Canal, Grand
Union Canal (West Bridge Leicester to
Foxton), Grantham Canal (including Market
Harborough Arm), Huddersfield Broad Canal,
Hull Marina, New Junction Canal, Nottingham
& Beeston Cut, Pocklington Canal, Ripon
Canal, River Ouse, River Soar, River Trent,
River Ure, Selby Canal, Sheffield & South
Yorkshire Navigations and Stainforth &
Keadby Canal, Tees Barrage and Trent &
Mersey Canal (Derwent Mouth to Trent Lock).
Local offices: Castleford, Doncaster, Escrick,
Newark, Sawley and Stockton-on-Tees.
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USEFUL CONTACTS

Customer Services
01923 201120
Fax: 01923 201304
email: enquiries.hq@britishwaterways.co.uk
website: www.britishwaterways.co.uk

Head Office
01923 226422
Willow Grange, 
Church Road, 
Watford, 
WD17 4QA

Waterway Conservation
and Regeneration Group

Gloucester 
01452 318040
Alexandra Warehouse,
Gloucester Docks, 
Gloucester, GL1 2LG 

Hillmorton 
01788 546835
The Locks, 
Hillmorton, 
Rugby, 
Warwickshire, CV21 4PP

Technical Services
0113 281 6800 
Fearns Wharf, 
Neptune Street, 
Leeds, LS9 8PB

Heritage Skills Centre
01926 626100
Canal Lane,
Hatton,
Warwick, CV35 7JL

The Waterway Ombudsman
01273 832624
PO Box 406, 
Haywards Heath, 
West Sussex, RH17 5GF

Inland Waterways Amenity 
Advisory Council (IWACC)
020 7253 1745
City Road Lock, 
38 Graham Street, 
Islington, 
London, N1 8JX

Association of Inland 
Navigation Authorities (AINA)
01642 590257
Willow Grange, 
Church Road, 
Watford, WD17 4QA

The Waterways Trust
01923 201494
The Trust House, 
Church Road, 
Watford, WD17 4QA

WATERWAY MAP

This page: Little Venice on the Regent’s Canal.

Front cover: The King’s Division Normandy Band from Weeton Barracks, Preston, help celebrate the

opening of Anderton Boat Lift in March 2002.

Back cover: Enjoying the Grand Union Canal at Tring.


